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To the Shareholders and Management Board of Yap! Kred| Bank Azerbaijan CJSC:

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, In all material respects, the financial position of
CJSC “Yapi Kredi Bank Azerbaljan” (the “Bank®) as at 31 December 2020, and the Bank's financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards.

What we have audited

The Bank's financlal statements comprise:

 the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

» the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended:

» the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

» the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Woe conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibllities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion,

Independence

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines Is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financlal statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's abllity to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financlal reporting process.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit Azerbaljan LL.C

The Landmark Office Plaza Ill, 12th fioor, 80A Nizemi Strest

AZ 1010, Baku, Azerbaljan

T: +984 (12) 487 26 15, F:+994 (12) 407 74 11, www.pwc.com/az
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a materiai misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are consldered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaln audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a bas!s for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
pracedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's Internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financlal statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinlon. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to
continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events In a manner that achleves fair presentation.

We communicate with Audit Committes regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficlencies In internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan
31 May 2021



Yapi Kred! Bank Azerbalfan CJSC
Statement of Financlal Position
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Azerbaijan! Manats)

Notes 31 December 31 Dacember
2020 2019

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 7 183,540 202,398
Investments in debt securities 10 23,096 36,536
Amounts due from credit institutions 8 11,460 20,086
Loans to customers g 125,683 160,678
Property and equipment 11 4,102 3,874
Intanglble assets 12 7.677 7,890
Right of use assets 13 5912 5,751
Other assets 15 7,835 8,936
TOTAL ASSETS 369,305 447,047
LIABILITIES
Amounts due to credit institutions 1 11,972 10,051
Amounts due to custorners 17 249,563 330,600
Deferred Income tax llabilities 1 1,717 2,116
Other liabilitles 15 11,376 12,922
TOTAL LIABILITIES L4 274,628 355,606
EQUITY
Share capital 18 55,381 55,381
Retained earnings 39,206 35,968
TOTAL EQUITY 94,6877 91,349
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 369,305 447,047

Signed and authorlzed for release on behalf of the Management Board of the Bank on 31 May
2021: :

ilpl fored F—
4 | _',:._. I_4‘:. B (e - » L
__Cenk Yol b "J Matanat Ga<imova Ramin Saftarqy
Chief | qure Officer / Chief Accountant Chief of Financial Reporting
Genaral:m Iﬁes;;o' Department

The accompanying notes on pages 5 to 62 are an integral part of these financlal statements.



Yapi Kred! Bank Azerbaijan CJSC
Staterment of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Iincome
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Azerbajlan/ Manats)

Notes 2020 2018
Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method 20 21,668 26,388
Interest expense 20 (2,050) {3,416)
Net margin on Interest and simllar Incoms 19,618 22972
Credit loss allowance ] (284) {637)
Net margin on Interest and aimllar Income after credit
loss allowance 19,334 22,335
Fee and commission income 21 8,708 10,529
Fee and commisslon expenss 21 (4,715) {5,572)
Gains less losses from modification of financial assets (131) -
(ains less losses from frading in forelgn cumencles 3,709 3,645
Net losses from currency translation differences {29) (14)
Other income 15 48
Personnel, General and administrative expenses 22 {23,383) (23,403)
Other impairment and provisions (53) 37
Profit before tax 3473 7,605
Income tax axpense 14 (145) (1,410)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 3,328 6,195
Other comprehensive income for the year - -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 3,328 6,185

The accompanying notes on pages 5 to 62 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Yapl Kred! Bank Azerbalfan CJSC
Statement of Changes in Equity
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Azerbaljani Manats)

Share Retained Total
Capltal eamings

Balance at 1 January 2018 55,381 20,773 85,154
Profit for the year i - 6,195 8,195
Total comprehensive Income for the year - 6,185 6.195_
Batance at 31 December 2019 55,381 35,968 91,349
Profit for the year - 3,328 3,328
Total comprehensive Income for the year - 3,328 3,328
Balance at 31 December 2020 55,381 39,286 94,677

The accompanying notes on pages 5 to 62 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Yapi Kredl Bank Azerbaijan CJSC
Statement of Cash Flow
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats)

Notes 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest recelved 21,408 29,547
Interest paid (2,216) (3,716)
Fees and commissions received 8,837 10,585
Fees and commisslons paid {4,715) (6,572)
Realized gains less losses from dealing in foreign currencies 3,709 3,645
Other income received 18 48
Personnel expenses pald (9,304) {9,340)
Other operating expenses pald (7,848) {7,568)
Cash flows from operating activities before changes In

operating assets and llabllities 9,796 17,639
Net (Increase)/dacreass in operating assets
Amounts due from credit Institutions 9,251 40,001
Loans to customers 35,247 (17,357)
Other assets 526 {1,019)
Net increase/(decrease) in aperating Habllities
Amounts dus to credit institutions 1,921 2,781
Amounts due to customers {80,880) {(4,141)
Other llabllities (1,087) 393
Net cash {used In)/from operating activities before

Income tax (25,208) 38,207
Income tax pald (466) {2,012)
Net cash {(used in)/from operating activities {(25,672) 36,285
Cash flows from investing actlvitles
Proceeds from disposal of bonds - 7,460
Purchase of property and equipment 11 (2,154} (1,036)
Purchase of intangible assets 12 (2,299) (2,205)
Net cash {(used In)/from Investing activities {4,453) 4,219
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of principal of lease liabilities {(2,162) {2,320)
Net cash used In financing activities (2,162) (2,320)
Effect of exchange rates changes on cash and cash equivaients (29} (14)
Net (decrease)/increase In cash and cash equivalents (32,316) 38,170
Cash and cash squivalents, beginning 236,088 197,918
Cash and cash equivalents, ending 7.10 203,772 236,088

As per Bank policy cash and cash equivalents include-notes issued by Central Bank of Azerbaljan
Republic amounted AZN 20,232 (2019: AZN 33,692).

Ny



Yapl Kredl Bank Azerbaifan CJSC
Notes to the Financlal Statements — 31 December 2020
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Azerbaifani Manats)

1 introduction

These financlal statements have been prepared In accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards for the year ended 31 December 2020 for Yapi Kredl Bank (the “Bank™).

Yapl Kredi Bank Azerbailan (the “Yapi Kredi Bank") was incorporated and is domiciled in the Republic of
Azerbaljan. Yapi Kredi Bank Azerbaljan is a closed joint-stock company limited by shares and was set up in
accordance with Azerbaijani regulations.

Principal activity. The Yapi Kredi Bank’s principal business activity is commercial and retail banking
operations within the Republic of Azerbaijan. The Yapl Kredi Bank has operated under a full banking
license issued by the Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan (the "CBAR") since 11 January 2000
under registration number 243. The Yapi Kredi Bank participates In the state deposit insurance scheme,
which was introduced by the Azeri Law, "Insurance of individual deposits in the Republic of Azerbaljan”
dated 20 December 2006. The State Deposit Insurance Fund guarantees full repayment of deposits of
individuals, annual Interest rate not exceeding 12% for AZN, 2.5% for foreign currencies.

Registered address and place of business. The Bank's registered address and principal piace of
business is 73G Jalll Mammadguluzadeh street Baku, AZ1078, Azerbaijan.

The Bank has 8 branches (2019: 8 branches), 1 customer services unit (2019: 1 unit) within the Republic of
Azerbaijan. The Bank had 247 employees at 31 December 2020 (2019: 245).

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019 the following shareholders owned the outstanding shares of the Bank:

Sharsholder %
Yapi ve Kredl Bankasi A.S. 99.8
YK Yatirim Menkul Degerler A.S. 0.1
YK Leass A.S. 0.1

Total 100.0

Yapt ve Kredi Bankast A.$. (“YKB"), an entity established in Turkey, is the ultimate parent of the Bank.
YKB's shares have been traded on the Istanbul Stock Exchange ("ISE”) since 1987.

As of 31 December 2020, 30,03% of the shares of the Bank are publicly traded (31 December 2019 -
18,20%).

40,95% of the shares out of the remaining 69,97% is owned by Kog Financial Services. (“KFS") which is
owned by Kog¢ Group, 9,02% Is owned by Kog Group directly and 20,00% is owned by UniCredit ("UCG").
Accordingly, the total direct and Indirect shares of Kog Group stand at 49.98%




Yapl Kredl Bank Azerbalfan CJSC
Notes to the Financlal Statements — 31 December 2020
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Azerbalfani Manats)

2 Operating Environment of the Bank

The Republic of Azerbaijan displays certain characteristics of an emerging market. Current and future
growth and stablilty of the economy Is largely dependent upon the effective implementation of economic,
fiscal and monetary measures undertaken by government as well as crude oll prices and stabllity of
Azerbaljani manats.

Following the sharp economic contraction in 2016 due to negative impact of the decline In oll prices and
devaluations of national currency against major international currencies, the government accelerated
reforms in support of long-term economic stabliity and sustainability. Based on the economic reforms
involving institutional changes, Inflation was stable at a low single-digit rate, the economic growth remained
positively zoned, the exchange rate of the national currency was sustainable and positive trends emerged
in the foreign sector.

Despite a number of ongoing fragilities in the systemic risks, the banking sector stabllity was safeguarded
in parallel with lending recovery. The implementation of the Presidential Decree on “Additional measures
on resolving problematic loans of individuals® has led to compensation of individuals and restructuring of
defaulted loans of individuals helped to improve bad loan problem in the banking sector.

The International rating agencies have maintained credit ratings of Azerbaijan during 2020 with stable
outicok. Moody's has evaluated Azerbaijan's economy as "Ba2” with stable outiook in its latest report from
October 2020. Despite the spread of the coronavirus pandemic, the agency's rating of the current
assessment of the country’s resilience to external shocks Is positive.

Thanks to the economic reforms Initiated after the devaluation of 2018, involving institutional changes;
between 2017-2019 period, inflation was stable at a low single-digit rate, the exchange rate of the national
currency was stable and the economic growth remained positive.

On 12 March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared the outbreak of COVID-19 a global pandemic.
In response to the pandemic, the Azerbaljani authorities Implemented numerous measures attempting to
contain the spreading and impact of COVID-19, such as travel bans and restrictions, quarantines, shelter-
in-place orders and limitations on business activity, including closures. The above measures were gradually
relaxed and reinforced again effective December 2020. These measures have, among other things,
restricted economic activity in Azerbaijan and have negatively impacted, and could continue to negatively
impact businesses, market participants, clients of the Bank, as well as the Azerbaijan and global economy
for an unknown period of time.

Alongside the COVID-19 outbreak, renewed hostillies began on 27 September 2020 between Azerbaijan
and Amenla over Nagorno-Karabakh and Armenian-occupied territories surrounding Nagorno-Karabakh.
Azerbaljan introduced martlal iaw along with curfew and made several territorial gains over the following six
weeks. An armistice agreement was signed on 09 November, 2020, which ended all hostilities in the
Nagomo-Karabakh reglon and surrounding territories therein from 10 November 2020.

The ongoing effects of the political and economic situation are difficult to predict, but they may have further
effects on the economy of Azerbaijan, which may lead to a deterioration of the State finances, volatillty of
financial markets, illiquidity on capital markets, higher inflation and a depreciation of the natlonal currency
against major forelgn currencies.

Central Bank has relaxed some capital and provisioning requirements to mitigate the negative effects of the
pandemic on the banking sector; which is still in a recovery and development period.

The Bank's Management is monitoring these developments in the current environment and taking
precautionary measures as It considers necessary in order to ensure the sustainability and development of
the Bank's business in the foreseeable future.




Yap! Kredi Bank Azerbaijan CJSC
Notes to the Financlal Statements - 31 December 2020
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats)

2 Operating Environment of the Bank (Continued)

The Bank’s Management is taking necessary measures to ensure sustainability of the Bank’s operations
and support its customers and employees consider listing the measures taken, for example:

- “Office heaithcare group” was created;

Starting from 18.03.2020 employees have been permitted working through VPN access;

The working permigsions were registered in the governmental electronic portal;

The front office working hours were decreased at some points;

The average number of employees working at the office was 101 or 46%, home 146 or 59% during the

period of 29 March 2020 - 31 December 2020;

- 50% discount was applied to the standard commissions on intra-country payments (AZIPS&XOHKS)
and POS operations starting from September 2020;

- As aresult of pandemic impact 15 loans {4 business and 11 retail), with the total amount of AZN 687
were restructured;

- Inorder to direct and encourage customers was Imposed zero commission to the IB/MB channel during
the quarantine period, between 31 March 2020 and 4 May 2020;

- The online credit card application system has been improved (April 2020);

- Credit card interest rates were updated in July 2020.

However, the future effects of the cumrent economic situation are difficult to predict and management's
current expectations and estimates could differ from actual resuits.

3 Significant Accounting Policles

Basis of preparation. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") under the historical cost convention, as modified by the initial
recognition of financial instruments based on fair value. The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied
fo all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. Refer to Note 5.

Financiel Instruments — key measurement terms. Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or pald to transfer a liabillty In an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The best evidence of fair value is price In an active market. An active market Is one in
which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing Information on an ongoing basis. Fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is
measured as the product of the quoted price for the individual asset or liabllity and the quantity held by the
entity. This is the case even if a market's normal daily trading volume is not sufficlent to absorb the quantity
held and placing orders to sell the position in a single transaction might affect the quoted price.

Valuation technigques such as discounted cash flow models or models based on recent arm's length
transactions or consideration of financial data of the investees, are used to measure fair vaiue of certaln
financial instruments for which extemal market pricing information is not available. Fair value
measurements are analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy as follows: (i) level one are measurements
at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabiilties, (i) level two measurements
are valuations techniques with all material inputs observable for the asset or liabllity, either directly (that Is,
as prices) or indirectly (that Is, derived from prices), and (jil) level three measurements are valuations not
based on solely observable market data (that is, the measurement requires significant unobservable
inputs). Transfers between levels of the fair value hlerarchy are deemed to have occurred at the end of the
reporting perlod.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of
a financial instrument. An Incremental cost Is one that would not have been incurred if the transaction had
not taken place. Transaction costs include fees and commissions pald to agents (including empioyees
acting as selling agents), advisors, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities
exchanges, and transfer taxes and dutles. Transaction costs do not include debt premiums or discounts,
financing costs or internal administrative or holding costs.




Yapi Kred] Bank Azerbaljan CJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2020
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Azerbalfani Manats)

3 Significant Accounting Policles {Continued)

Amortised cost ("AC") Is the amount at which the financial instrument was recognised at Inltlal recognition
less any principal repayments, plus accrued interest, and for financlal assets less any allowance for
expected credit losses. Accrued interest includes amortisation of transaction costs deferred at initial
recognition and of any premium or discount to maturity amount using the effective interest method. Accrued
interest income and accrued Interest expense, including both accrued coupon and amortised discount or
premium (including fees deferred at origination, if any), are not presented separately and are Included in
the carrying values of related items in the statement of financial position.

The effective interest method is a method of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period, so as to achleve a constant periodic rate of interest (effactive interest rate) on the carrying
amount. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts (excluding future credit losses) through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, if appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial instrument.

The effective interest rate discounts cash flows of variable interest instruments to the next interest repricing
date, except for the premium or discount, which reflects the credit spread over the floating rate specified in
the Instrument, or other variables that are not reset to market rates. Such premiums or discounts are
amortised over the whole expected life of the instrument. The present value calculation includes all fees
paid or recelved between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Financilal Instruments - Initial recognitlon. Financlal Instruments at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair
value. All other financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value adjusted for transaction costs. Fair
value at Initial recognition is best evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on initial recognition is
only recorded If there is a difference between fair value and transaction price which can be evidenced by
other observable current market transactions in the same Instrument or by a valuation technique whose
inputs include only data from observable markets. After the initial recognition, an ECL allowance is
recognised for financlal assets measured at AC and investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI,
resulting in an immediate accounting loss.

All purchases and sales of financial assets that require dellvery within the time frame established by
regulation or market convention (“regular way” purchases and sales) are recorded at trade date, which is
the date on which the Bank commits to deliver a financial asset. All other purchases are recognised when
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets — classification and subsequent measurement - measurement categories. The
Bank classifies financlal assets In the following measurement categories: FVTPL, FVOCI and AC. The
classification and subsequent measurement of debt financial assets depends on: (i) the Bank's business
model for managing the related assets portfolio and (ii) the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Financial assets — classification and subsequent measurement — business model. The business
model reflects how the Bank manages the assets in order to generate cash flows — whether the Bank's
objective Is: (1) solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets (“hold to collect contractual cash
flows®,) or (ii) to collect both the contractual cash flows and the cash flows arising from the sale of assets
(*hold to collect contractual cash flows and sell’) or, if neither of {i) and (ii) is applicable, the financial assets
are classified as part of “other" business model and measured at FVTPL.

Business model is determined for a group of assets (on a portfolio level) based on all relevant evidence
about the activities that the Bank undertakes to achleve the objective set out for the portfolio available at
the date of the assessment. Factors considered by the Bank in determining the business model include the
purpose and composition of a portfolio, past experience on how the cash flows for the respective assets
were collected, how risks are assessed and managed, how the assets’ performance is assessed. Refer to
Note 4 for critical Judgements applied by the Bank in determining the business models for its financial
assets.

Financlal assets — classification and subsequent measurement — cash flow characteristics. Where
the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to hold contractual cash flows and
sell, the Bank assesses whether the cash flows represent solely payments of principal and Interest
("SPPI").




Yapl Kredl Bank Azerbaljan CJSC
Notes to the Financlal Statements — 31 December 2020
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Azerbaljani Manats)

3 Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that is inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the financlal asset is classified and measured at FVTPL. The SPP| assessment is performed
on initial recognition of an asset and it is not subsequently reassessed. Refer to Note 4 for critical
Jjudgements applied by the Bank in performing the SPPI test for its financial assets.

Financlal assets - reclassification. Financlal instruments are reclassified only when the business model
for managing the portfollo as a whole changes. The reclassification has a prospective effect and takes
place from the beglnning of the first reporting period that follows after the change in the business
model. The Bank did not change its business mode! during the current and comparative period and did not
make any reclassifications.

Financlal assets Impairment - credit loss allowance for ECL. The Bank assesses, on a forward-looking
basis, the ECL for debt instruments measured at AC and FVOCI and for the exposures arising from loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The Bank measures ECL and recognises credlt loss
allowance at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects: (i) an unbiased and probability
weighted amount that Is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, (ii) time value of money
and (jii} all reasonable and supportable Information that is available without undue cost and effort at the end
of each reporting period about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future conditions.

Debt instruments measured at AC are presented in the statement of financial position net of the allowance
for ECL. For loan commitments and financial guarantees, a separate provision for ECL is recognised as a
liabllity in the statement of financial position. For debt instruments at FVOCI, changes in amortised cost, net
of allowance for ECL, are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in carrying value are recogniged in
OCl as gains less losses on debt instruments at FVOCL.

The Bank applies a three stage model for impairment, based on changes in credit quality since Initial
recognition. A financial instrument that Is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified In Stage 1.
Financlal assets in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime ECL that
results from default events possible within the next 12 months or until contractual maturity, if shorter {"12
Months ECL"). If the Bank identifies a significant increase in credit risk ("SICR”) since initial recognition, the
asset is transferred to Stage 2 and Its ECL Is measured based on ECL on a Iifetime basis, that is, up until
contractual maturity but considering expected prepayments, if any (“Lifetime ECL"). Refer to Note 1 for a
description of how the Bank determines when a SICR has occurred. If the Bank determines that a financial
asset is credit-impaired, the asset is transferred to Stage 3 and its ECL Is measured as a Lifetime ECL. The
Bank's definition of credit impaired assets and definition of default Is explained in Note 1 .

As an exception, for certain financial instruments, such as credit cards, that may Include both a loan and an
undrawn commitment component, the Bank measures expected credit losses over the period that the Bank
is exposed to credit risk, that Is, until the expected credit losses would be mitigated by credit risk
management actions, even if that perlod extends beyond the maximum contractual period. This is because
contractual ability to demand repayment and cancel the undrawn commitment does not Iimit the exposure -
to credit losses to such contractual notice period.

Financlal assets - write-off. Financial assets are written-off, in whole or in part, when the Bank exhausted
all practical recovery efforts and has concluded that there Is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The
write-off represents a dercognition event. The Bank may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity when the Bank seeks to recover amounts that are contractually due, however, there Is
no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Financlal assets - derecognition. The Bank derecognises financial assets when {a) the assefs are
redeemed or the rights to cash flows from the assets otherwise expired or (b) the Bank has transferred the
rights to the cash flows from the financial assets or entered into a qualifying pass-through arrangement
while (i) also transferring substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the assets or {ii) nelther
transferring nor retaining substantially all risks and rewards of ownership, but not retaining control. Control
is retained if the counterparty does not have the practical ablllty to sell the asset in its entirety to an
unrelated third party without needing to impose restrictions on the sale.




Yapi Kred! Bank Azerbalfan CJSC
Notes to the Financlal Statements — 31 December 2020
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Azerbaljani Manats)

3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financlal assets — modification. The Bank sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual
terms of the financial assets. The Bank assesses whether the modification of contractual cash flows is
substantial considering, among other, the following factors: any new contractual terms that substantially
affect the risk profile of the asset (eg profit share or equity-based return), significant change in interest rate,
change In the currency denomination, new collateral or credit enhancement that significantly affects the
credit risk associated with the asset or a significant extenslon of a loan when the borrower is not In financial
difflculties.

If the modified terms are substantially different, the rights to cash flows from the original asset expire and
the Bank derecognises the original financial asset and recognises a new asset at Its fair value. The date of
renegotiation is considered to be the date of Initial recognition for subsequent impairment calcuiation
purposes, Inciuding determining whether a SICR has occurred. The Bank also assesses whether the new
loan or debt instrument meets the SPPI criterion. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
original asset derecognised and fair value of the new substantially modified asset is recognised in profit or
loss, unless the substance of the difference is attributed to a capital transaction with owners.

In a situation where the renegotlation was driven by financial difficulties of the counterparty and Inabllity to
make the originally agreed payments, the Bank compares the original and revised expected cash flows to
assets whether the risks and rewards of the asset are substantlally different as a result of the contractual
modification. If the risks and rewards do not change, the modified asset Is not substantially different from
the original asset and the modification does not result In derecognition. The Bank recalculates the gross
carrying amount by discounting the modified contractual cash flows by the original effective Interest rate,
and recognises a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financlal llabllities ~ measurement categorles. Financlal liabilities are classifled as subsequently
measured at AC, except for (i) financial liabilitles at FVTPL: this classification is applied to derlvatives,
financial liabilities held for trading (e.g. short positions in securities), contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination and other financial liabilities designated as such at Initial recognition
and (ii) financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.

Financial llabilities — derscognition. Financial liabillties are derecognised when they are extinguished
{l.e. when the obligation specified in the contract Is discharged, cancelled or expires).

Modlfications of liabllities that do not result in extinguishment are accounted for as a change in estimate
using a cumulative catch up method, with any gain or loss recognised in profit or loss, unless the economic
substance of the difference in carrying values is attributed to a capital transaction with owners.

Cash and cash equlvalents. Cash and cash equivalents are shori-term items which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignlficant risk of changes in value.
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, amounts due from the CBAR, excluding obligatory
reserves, and unrestricted balances on comrespondent accounts Including overnight deposits and deposits
with original maturities of less than three months. Funds restricted for a period of more than three months
on origination are excluded from cash and cash equivalents, both In the statement of financlal position and
for the purposes of the statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at AC because: (I)
they are held for collection of contractual cash flows and those cash flows represent SPPI, and (ii) they are
not designated at FVTPL. Notes from CBAR represent cash and cash equivalents.

Mandatory cash balances with the CBAR. Mandatory cash balances with the CBAR are carried at AC
and represent non-interest bearing mandatory reserve deposits, which are not availabie to flnance the
Bank's day to day operations, and hence are not considered as part of cash and cash equivalents for the
purposes of the statement of cash flows.

Due from credit Institutions. Amounts due from credit institutions are recorded when the Bank advances
money to counterparty banks. Amounts due from credit institutions are carried at AC when: (1) they are held
for the purposes of collecting contractual cash flows and those cash flows represent SPPI, and (ii) they are
not designated at FVTPL.

Investments In debt securities. Based on the business model and the cash fiow characteristics, the Bank
ciassifies investments In debt securities as carried at AC, FVOCI or FVTPL. Debt securities are carrled at
AC if they are held for collection of contractual cash flows and where those cash flows represent SPPI, and
if they are not voluntarily designated at FVTPL in order to significantly reduce an accounting mismatch.
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3 Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

Debt securities are carried at FVOCI if they are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling,
where those cash flows represent SPPI, and if they are not designated at FVTPL. Interest income from
these assets Is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment allowance estimated using the expected credit loss model is recognised in profit or loss for the
year. All other changes in the carrying value are recognised in OCI. When the debt security is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised In OCI is reclassified from OCI to profit or
loss.

Investments In debt securities are carried at FVTPL if they do not meet the criterla for AC or FVOCI. The
Bank may also irevocably designate investments in debt securities at FVTPL on initial recognition if
applying this option significantly reduces an accounting mismatch between financlal assets and llabilities
being recognised or measured on different accounting bases.

Notes Issued by Central Bank of the Republic of Azerballan (CBAR) and Other Bonds. Notes from
CBAR have original maturity less than one month and represents cash and cash equivalents. Other
investments In debt securities are measured at amortised cost.

Loans to customers. Loans to customers are recorded when the Bank advances money to purchase or
originate a loan due from a customer. Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the
Bank classifies loans to customers into one of the following measurement categories: (i) AC: loans that are
held for collection of contractual cash flows and those cash flows represent SPP| and loans that are not
volunterily designated at FVTPL, and (ii) FVTPL: loans that do not meet the SPPI test or other criteria for
AC or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Impairment allowances are determined based on the forward-looking ECL models. Note 1 provides
Information about Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used In measuring ECL, including an
explanation of how the Bank incorporates forward-looking information in the ECL models.

Repossessed collateral. Repossessed collateral represents financial and non-financial assets acquired by
the Bank in settiement of overdue loans. The assets are initially recognised at fair value when acquired and
Included in premises and equipment, other financial assets, investment properties or inventories within
other assets depending on their nature and the Bank's intention in respect of recovery of these assets. The
Bank measures a repossessed coliateral at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs 1o sell.
The Bank recognizes an impairment loss for any initlal or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value
less costs to sell if events or changes in circumstance indicate that their carrying amount may be impaired.

Loan commitments. The Bank issues commitments to provide loans. These commitments are irrevocable
or revocable only In response to a material adverse change. Such commitments are initlally recognised at
their falr value, which is normally evidenced by the amount of fees received. This amount Is amortised on a
straight iine basis over the Iife of the commitment, except for commitments to originate loans if it is probable
that the Bank will enter Into a specific lending arrangement and does not expect to sell the resulting loan
shortly after origination; such loan commitment fees are deferred and included in the carrying value of the
loan on initial recognition. At the end of each reporting period, the commitments are measured at (I) the
remaining unamortised balance of the amount at initial recognition, plus {il) the amount of the loss
allowance determined based on the expected credit loss model, unless the commitment is to provide a loan
at a below market interest rate, in which case the measurement Is at the higher of these two amounts. The
carrying amount of the loan commitments represents a liability. For contracts that include both a loan and
an undrawn commitment and where the Bank cannot separately distinguish the ECL on the undrawn loan
component from the loan component, the ECL on the undrawn commitment is recognised together with the
loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the combined ECLs exceed the gross carrying amount of the
loan, they are recognised as a liabllity.

Financlal guarantees. Financlal guarantees require the Bank to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder of the guarantee for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt Instrument. Financial guarantees are initlally
recognised in “Other liabilities” at their fair value, which is normally evidenced by the amount of fees
received. This amount is amortised on a straight line basis over the life of the guarantee. At the end of each
reporting period, the guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the amount of the loss allowance for the
guaranteed exposure determined based on the expected loss model and (ji) the remaining unamortised
halance of the amount at initial recognition. In addition, an ECL loss allowance Is recognised for fees
receivable that are recognised in the statement of financial position as an asset.
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3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxatlon. The current income tax expense is calculated in accordance with the regulations of the Republic
of Azerbaijan.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated in respect of temporary differences using the liability
method. Deferred Income taxes are provided for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilitles and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes, except where the deferred
income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or llability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.

A deferred tax asset is recorded only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be avallable
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utllized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liabillty Is
settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments In subsidiarles,
assoclates and Joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be
controlled and it Is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse In the foreseeable future.

In addition, there are various operating taxes in Azerbaljan such as VAT, property tax, withholding tax and
others which become relevant as a result of the Bank's operations. These taxes are included as a
component of general and administrative expenses.

Property and equipment. Property and equipment are carried at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day
servicing, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of equipment when that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes [n
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Depreclation. Depreciation of an asset begins when it is avallable for use. Depreciation is calculated on
straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

. . Years
Leasshold Improvements 415
Fumiture and fixtures 4-5
Computers and office equipment 4
Motor vehicles 4

The asset's residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each
financlal year-end.

Costs related to repairs and renewals are charged when incurred and included In other operating
expenses, unless they qualify for caplitalization.

Intangible assets. Intangible assets other than goodwill include computer software and licenses.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initiai
recognition, Intangible assets are carrled at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic lives of 1 to 10 years and
assessed for Impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

Amortization pericds and methods for intanglble agsets with indefinite useful lives are reviewed at least at
each financial year-end.

Accounting for leases by the Bank as a lessee from 1 January 2019. The Bank leases office premises,
apartments, cars and ATMs. Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at
the date at which the leased asset Is avallable for use by the Bank. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of Interest on the remaining balance of the liabllity for each period.
The right-of-use asset Is recognised at cost and depreclated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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3 Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

Liabillties arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payment that are hased on an index or a rate;

. amounts expected to be payabie by the lessee under residual value guarantees:

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee Is reasonably certain to exercise that option,

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtaln an asset of similar vaiue in a similar economic environment
with similar terms and conditlons.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the Initial measurement of lease liabllity;

. any iease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

. any inltial direct costs, and

. restoration costs.

In determining the lease term, management of the Bank considers all facts and circumstances that create
an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extenslon
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the iease term if the lease is reasonably
certain to be extended or not terminated.

The assessment Is reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects this assessment and that is within the control of the lesses.

Due to other credit Institutions. Amounts due to other banks are recorded when money or other assets
are advanced to the Bank by counterparty banks. The non-derivative liabllity is carried at AC.

Amounts due to customers. Amounts due to customers are non-derivative liabilitles to individuals, state
or corporate customers and are carried at AC.

Provision. Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.

Share Capital. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. External costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares, other than on a business combination, are shown as a deduction from the proceeds in equity.

Any excess of the fair value of consideration received over the par value of shares issued is racognized as
additional pald-in capital.

Presentation of statement of financial position in order of liquidity. The Bank does not have a clearly
identifiable operating cycle and therefore does not present current and non-current assets and liabilltles
separately in the statement of financial position. Instead, assets and liabllities are presented in order of
their liquidity. Refer to Note 23 for analysis of financial Instruments by expected maturity.

Contingencies. Contingent liabilitles are not recognized in the statement of financial position but are
disclosed unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized
In the statement of financlal position but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits Is probable.
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3 Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

Interest Income and expense recognition. Interest Income and expense are recorded for all debt
instruments on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. This method defers, as part of interest
income or expense, all fees paid or received between the parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective Interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Fees Integral to the effective interest rate include origination fees received or paid by the entity relating to
the creation or acquisition of a financlal asset or issuance of a financial llability, for example fees for
evaluating creditworthiness, evaluating and recording guarantees or collateral, negotiating the terms of the
instrument and for processing transaction documents. Commitment fees received by the Bank to originate
loans at market interest rates are integral to the effective interest rate if It is probable that the Bank will
enter into a specific lending arrangement and does not expect to sell the resulting loan shortly after
origination. The Bank does not designate loan commitments as financial liabllities at FVTPL.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective Interest rate to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets, except for (i) financial assets that have become credit impalred (Stage 3), for which Interest
revenus [s calculated by applying the effective Interest rate to their AC, net of the ECL provision.

Fees and commissions. The Bank earns fee and commission Income from a diverse range of services it
provides to its customers. Fee income can be divided into the following two categories:

. Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain period of time

Fee and commission income Is recognised over time on a straight line basis as the services are rendered,
when the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Bank's
performance. Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down and other credit related

fees are deferred (together with any incremental costs) and recognized as an adjustment to the effective
Interest rate on the loan.

J Fee income from providing transaction services

Fee and commission income Is recognised at a point in time when the Bank satisfles its performance
obligation, usually upon execution of the underlying transaction. The amount of fee or commission received
or receivable represents the transaction price for the services identifled as distinct performance
obligations. Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party
are recognized on compietion of the underlying fransaction. Fees or components of fees that are linked to a
certain performance are recognised after fulfilling the corresponding criteria.

Sales and purchases of forelgn currencles and currency conversion. The Bank sells and purchases
forelgn currencies In the cash offices and through the bank accounts, as well as exchanges foreign
currencies. The transactions are performed at the exchange rates established by the Bank, which are
different from the official spot exchange rates at the particular dates. The differences between the official
rates and Bank rates are recognised as gains less losses from trading in foreign currencles at a polint in
time when a particular performance obligation is satisfied.

Forelgn currency transiation. The financlal statements are presented in Azerbaljanl Manat, which is the
Bank's functional and presentation currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the

functional currency, converted at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencles are retranslated at the functional currency rate of
exchange ruling at the reporting date. Gains and losses resulting from the translation of foreign currency
transactions are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as net gains
(losses) from foreign currency translation differences. Non-monetary ltems that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at falr value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the falr value was determined.

Differences between the contractual exchange rate of a transaction in a forelgn currency and the CBAR
exchange rate on the date of the transaction are included in gains/ losses from dealing operations.
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3 Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

The Bank used the following officlal exchange rates at 31 December 2020 and 2019 In the preparation of
these financial statements:

2020 2019
1 US dollar AZN 1.7000 AZN 1.7000
1EUR AZN 2.0890 AZN 1.9035

4 Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgements In Applying Accounting Policles

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts recognised in the financial
statements, and the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on managements experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Management also makes certain judgements, apart from those involving estimations, in the process of
applying the accounting policies. Judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the carrying
amount of agsets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

ECL measurement. Measurement of ECLs is a significant estimate that involves determination of
methodology, models and data inputs. Details of ECL measurement methodology are disclosed in Note 23
. The following components have a major impact on credit loss allowance: definition of default, SICR,
probability of default ("PD"), exposure at default ("EAD"), and loss given default (“LGD"), as well as models
of macro-economic scenarios. The Bank regularly reviews and validates the models and inputs to the
models to reduce any differences between expected credit loss estimates and actual credit loss
experience.

A 16% increase or decrease in PD estimates would result in an increase or decrease in total expected
credit loss allowances of AZN 173 thousand at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: Increase or
decrease of AZN 189 thousand). A 15% increase or decrease in LGD estimates would result in an Increase
or decrease in total expected credit loss allowances of AZN 638 thousand at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: increase or decrease of AZN 611 thousand).

Customer rellef measures. The Bank implemented relief measures stipulated in the law passed in April
2020 in response to the spread of COVID-19. However, such measures were not in the form of blanket
maratorias and borrowers had to opt-in for its debt restructuring following procedure for such restructurings
established by the Bank in March 2020 and April of 2020 following the pandemic. Individuals and SMEs that
are negatively affected by the virus and lost more than 30% of their income can apply for payment holidays
for up to six months, which have to be granted by the Bank. The Bank concluded that generally such
applications provide evidence of a significant increase In credit risk of the loan, unless observable mitigating
factors (affected industry, government subsidy, and customer creditworthiness) are identified. Additional
metrics were considered for stage determination for COVID impacted portfolio, such as “credit history" and
“days past due” status as of restructuring date, payment behaviour of borrowers before and after lockdown.

The Bank offered payment holidays and temporary reduction In interest rates on certain consumer loans. The
Bank concluded that these measures result in contractual modification of the respective loans. Since payment
holidays did not cover concession on Interest charged to borowers, the Bank did not incur significant
modification ioss In the period ended 30 December 2020.

Determination of collateral value. Management monitors market value of collateral on a regular basis.
Management uses its experienced judgment or independent opinion to adjust the fair value to reflect
the current circumstances. The amount and collateral required depend on the assessment of credit risk of
the counterparty.
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policles (Continued)

Initial recognition of related party transactions. In the normal course of business, the Bank enters into
transactions with its related parties. IFRS 9 requires initial recognition of financlal instruments based on
their fair values. Judgement is applied in determining if transactions are priced at market or non-market
Interest rates, where there Is no active market for such transactions. The basis for judgement Is pricing for
similar types of transactions with unrelated parties and effective interest rate analysis. Terms and
conditions of related party balances are disclosed in Note 25.

Credit exposure on revolving credit facilities (e.g. credit cards, overdrafts). For certain loan facilities,
the Bank's exposure to credit losses may extend beyond the maximum contractual period of the facility.
This exception applies to certain revolving credit facllities, which Include both a loan and an undrawn
commitment component and where the Bank's contractual ability to demand repayment and cancel the
undrawn component in practice does not limit its exposure to credit losses.

For such facilities, the Bank measures ECLs over the period that the Bank is exposed to credit risk and
ECLs are not mitigated by credit risk management actions. Application of this exception requires
judgement. Management applied its judgement in identifying the facliities, both retail and commercial, to
which this exception applies. The Bank applied this exception to facilities with the following characteristics:

(a) there is no fixed term or repayment structure, (b} the contractual ability to cancel the contract is not in
practice enforced as a result of day-to-day management of the credit exposure and the contract may only
be cancelled when the Bank becomes aware of an increase In credit risk at the level of an individual facility,
and (c) the exposures are managed on a collective basls. Further, the Bank applied judgement in
determining a period for measuring the ECL, including the starting point and the expsected and point of the
exposures.

The Bank considered historical information and experience about: {(a) the period over which the Bank is
exposed to credit risk on similar facilities, including when the last significant modification of the facility
occurred and that therefore determines the starting point for assessing SICR, (b) the length of time for
related defaults to occur on simllar financial Instruments following a SICR and (c) the credit risk
management actions (eg the reduction or removal of undrawn limits), prepayment rates and other factors
that drive expected maturity. In applying these factors, the Bank segments the portfolios of revolving
facilities Into sub-groups and applies the factors that are most relevant based on historical data and
experience as well as forward-looking information.

Significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”). In order to determine whether there has been a significant
increase In credit risk, the Bank compares the risk of a default occurring over the life of a financial
instrument at the end of the reporting date with the risk of default at the date of Initial recognition. The
assessment considers relative Increase in credit risk rather than achieving a specific level of credit risk at
the end of the reporting period. The Bank considers ail reasonable and supportable forward looking
information available without undue cost and effort, which Includes a range of factors, including behavioural
aspects of particular customer portfolios. The Bank identifies behavioural indicators of increases in credit
risk prior to delinquency and incorporated appropriate forward looking information into the credit risk
assessment, elther at an individual instrument, or on a portfolio level. Refer to Note 24 .

Should ECL on all loans and advances to customers be measured at lifetime ECL (that is, Including those
that are currenty in Stage 1 measured at 12-months ECL), the expected credit loss allowance would be
higher by AZN 2,673 thousand as of 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: higher by AZN 2,190
thousand).
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgements In Applying Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business model assessment. The business model drives classification of financial assets. Management
applied judgement in determining the level of aggregation and portfolios of financial instruments when
performing the business model assessment. When assessing sales fransactions, the Bank considers their
historical frequency, timing and value, reasons for the sales and expectations about future sales activity.
Sales transactions almed at minimising potential losses due to credit deterioration are considered
consistent with the "hold to collect” business model. Other sales before maturity, not related to credit risk
management activities, are also consistent with the "hold to collect” business model, provided that they are
infrequent or Insignificant in value, both indlvidually and in aggregate. The Bank assesses significance of
sales fransactions by comparing the value of the sales to the value of the portfolio subject to the business
model assessment over the average life of the portfolio. In addition, sales of financial asset expected only
in stress case scenario, or in response to an Isolated event that is beyond the Bank's control, is not
recurring and could not have been anticipated by the Bank, are regarded as Incidental to the business
model objective and do not Impact the classification of the respective financlal assets.

The “hold to collect and sell” business model means that assets are held to collect the cash flows, but
selling is also integral to achieving the business model's objective, such as, managing liquidity needs,
achleving a particular yield, or maiching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabiiities
that fund those assets.

The resldual category includes those portfolios of financial assets, which are managed with the oblective of
reallsing cash flows primarily through sale, such as where a pattern of trading exists. Collecting contractual
cash flow is often incidental for this business model.

Assessment whether cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (“"SPPI”). Determining
whether a financial asset's cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest required judgement.

The time value of money element may be modified, for example, if a contractual interest rate ie perlodically
reset but the frequency of that reset does not match the tenor of the debt instrument's underlying base
interest rate, for example a loan pays three months interbank rate but the rate is reset every month. The
effect of the modified time vaiue of money was assessed by comparing relevant instrument's cash flows
against a benchmark debt instrument with SPP| cash flows, in each period and cumulatively over the Iife of
the Instrument. The assessment was done for all reasonably possible scenarios, including reascnably
possible financial stress situation that can occur in financial markets. In case of a scenario with cash flows
that significantly differ from the benchmark, the assessed instrument's cash flows are not SPPI and the
instrument Is then carried at FVTPL.

The Bank identified and considered contractual terms that change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows. The SPPI criterlon Is met if a loan allows early settlement and the prepayment amount substantially
represents principal and accrued interest, plus a reasonable additional compensation for the early
termination of the contract. The asset's principal is the fair value at initial recognition less subsequent
principal repayments, ie instalments net of interest determined using the effective interest method. As an
exception to this principle, the standard also allows instruments with prepayment features that meet the
following condition to meet SPPI: (i) the asset is originated at a premium or discount, (ii) the prepayment
amount represents contractual par amount and accrued interest and a reasonable additional compensation
for the early termination of the contract, and (li} the fair value of the prepayment feature is immaterial at
initial recognition.

Modification of financlal assets. When financial assets are contractually modified (e.g. renegotiated), the
Bank assesses whether the modification Is substantial and should result in derecognition of the original
asset and recognition of a new asset at fair value. This assessment Is based primarily on qualitative
factors, described In the relevant accounting policy and it requires significant jJudgment. In particular, the
Bank applies judgment in deciding whether credit Impalred renegotiated loans should be derecognised and
whether the new recognised loans should be considered as credit impaired on initial recognitlon. The
derecognition assessment depends on whether the risks and rewards, that Is, the varlability of expected
(rather than contractual) cash flows, change as a result of such medifications. Management determined
that risks and rewards did not change as a result of modifying such loans and therefore in substantially all
such modlfications, the loans were nelther derecognised nor reclassified out of the credit-impaired stage.
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policles
{Continued)

Write-off policy. Financial assets are written-off, in whole or In part, when the Bank exhausted all practical
recovery efforts and has concluded that there Is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Determining the
cash flows for which there Is no reasonable expectation of recovery requires judgement. Management
considered the following indicators that there Is no reasonable expectation of recovery: liquidation or
bankruptcy proceedings as well as decision of the court.

Initial recognition of related party transactions. In the normal course of business the Group enters Iinto
transactions with its related parties. IFRS 9 requires initial recognition of financial instruments based on
their fair values. Judgement is applied in determining If transactions are priced at market or non-market
interest rates, where there Is no active market for such transactions. The basls for judgement Is pricing for
similar types of transactions with unrelated parties and effective interest rate analysis. Terms and
conditions of related party balances are disclosed in Note 25.

5 Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations

Amendments to the Conceptual Framework for Financlal Reporting (Issued on 29 March 2018 and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The revised Conceptual
Framework includes a new chapter on measurement; guidance on reporting flnancial performance;
Improved definitions and guidance - in particular the definition of a liability; and clarfications in important
areas, such as the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty in financlal reporting.

Definition of a business - Amendments to IFRS 3 (Issued on 22 October 2018 and effective for
acquisitions from the beginning of annual reporting period that starts on or after 1 January 2020).
The amendments revise definition of a business. A business must have inputs and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The new guidance provides a
framework to evaluate when an input and a substantive process are present, including for early stage
companles that have not generated outputs. An organised workforce should be present as a condition for
classification as a business if are no outputs. The definition of the term ‘outputs’ is narrowed to focus on
goods and services provided to customers, generating investment income and other income, and it
excludes returns in the form of lower costs and other economic benefits. It is also no fonger necessary to
assess whether market participants are capable of replacing missing elements or integrating the acquired
activities and assets. An entity can apply a ‘concentration test'. The assets acquired would not represent a
business if substantially ail of the fair value of gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single asset (or a
group of similar assefs).

Definition of material — Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 (Issued on 31 October 2018 and effective
for annual perlods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The amendments clarify the definition of
material and how it should be applled by including In the definition guidance that until now has featured
elsewhere in IFRS. In addition, the explanations accompanying the definition have been Improved. Finally,
the amendments ensure that the definition of material Is consistent across all IFRS Standards. Information
is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.

Interest rate benchmark reform — Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 (issued on 26
September 2019 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The
amendments were triggered by replacement of benchmark interest rates such as LIBOR and other inter-
bank offered rates (IBORs’). The amendments provide temporary reiief from applying specific hedge
accounting requirements to hedging relationships directly affected by the IBOR reform.
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5 Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations {(Continued)

COVID-19-Related Rent Concesslons Amendment to IFRS 16 (Issued on 28 May 2020 and effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020). The amendment provides lessees with relief in
the form of an optional exemption from assessing whether a rent concession related to COVID-19 is a
lease modification. Lessees can elect to account for rent concessions in the same way as if they were not
lease modifications. The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following conditions are met: the change in
lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that Is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change; any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and there is no substantlve change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

6 New Accounting Proncuncements

Certain new standards and Interpretations have been Issued that are mandatory for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 or later, and which the Bank has not early adopted.

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” (Issued on 18 May 2017 and effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023). IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4, which has given companies dispensation to carry
on accounting for insurance contracts using existing practices. As a consequence, it was difficult for
investors to compare and contrast the financial performance of otherwise simllar Insurance companies.
IFRS 17 is a single principle-based standard to account for all types of insurance contracts, including
reinsurance contracts that an insurer holds. The standard requires recognition and measurement of groups
of insurance contracts at: (I) a risk-adjusted present value of the future cash flows (the fulfiment cash
flows) that incorporates all of the avallable information about the fulfilment cash flows In a way that is
consistent with observable market information; plus (if this value is a liabllity} or minus (if this value is an
asset) (il) an amount representing the unearned profit in the group of contracts (the contractual service
margin). Insurers will be recognising the profit from a group of insurance contracts over the period they
provide insurance coverage, and as they are released from risk. If a group of contracts is or becomes loss-
making, an entity will be recognising the loss immediately.

Amendments to IFRS 17 and an amendment to IFRS 4 (issued on 25 June 2020 and effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023). The amendments include a number of
clarifications intended to sase implementation of IFRS 17, simplify some requirements of the standard and
transition. The amendments relate to eight areas of IFRS 17, and they are not intended to change the
fundamental principles of the standard. The following amendments to IFRS 17 were made:

o Effective date: The effective date of IFRS 17 (incorporating the amendments) has been deferred by
two years to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023; and the fixed expiry date of
the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 in IFRS 4 has also been deferred to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

s Expected recovery of Insurance acquisition cash flows: An entity is required to allocate part of the
acquisition costs to related expected contract renewals, and to recognise those costs as an asset until
the entity recognises the contract renewals. Entities are required to assess the recoverability of the
asset at each reporting date, and to provide specific information about the asset in the notes o the
financial statements.

o Contractual service margin attributable fo investment services: Coverage units should be identified,
considering the quantity of benefits and expected period of both insurance coverage and investment
services, for contracts under the variable fee approach and for other contracts with an ‘investment-
return service’ under the general model. Costs related to investment activities should be included as
cash flows within the boundary of an insurance contract, to the extent that the entity performs such
activities to enhance benefits from insurance coverage for the policyholder.
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6 New Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

» Reinsurance contracts held — recovery of losses: When an entity recognises a loss on Initial recognition
of an onerous group of underlying insurance contracts, or on addition of onerous underlying contracts
to a group, an entity should adjust the contractual service margin of a related group of reinsurance
contracts held and recognise a gain on the reinsurance contracts held. The amount of the loss
recovered from a reinsurance contract held is determined by multiplying the loss recognised on
underlying insurance contracts and the percentage of claims on underlying insurance contracts that the
entity expects to recover from the relnsurance contract held. This requirement would apply only when
the relnsurance contract held Is recognised before or at the same time as the loss Is recognised on the
underlying insurance contracts.

e Other amendments: Other amendments include scope exclusions for some credit card (or similar)
confracts, and some loan confracts; presentation of insurance contract assets and liabilities in the
statement of financlal position in portfolios instead of groups; applicability of the risk mitigation option
when mitigating financial risks using reinsurance contracts held and non-derivative financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss; an accounting policy choice to change the estimates
made in previous interim financial statements when applying IFRS 17, Inclusion of income tax
payments and receipts that are specifically chargeable to the policyholder under the terms of an
insurance contract In the fulfiment cash flows; and selected transition reliefs and other minor
amendments.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Assoclate or Joint Venture —
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (Issued on 11 September 2014 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after a date to be determined by the IASB). These amendments address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or Joint venture. The main consequence of the
amendments Is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves a business. A partial gain
or loss Is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute & business, even If these
assets are held by a subsidiary.

Classification of labliitles as current or non-current — Amendments to IAS 1 (Issued on 23 January
2020 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022). These narrow scope
amendments clarify that liabilities are classified as either current or non-current, depending on the rights
that exist at the end of the reporting period. Liabilities are non-current if the entity has a substantive right, at
the end of the reporting period, to defer setlement for at least twelve months. The guidance no longer
requires such a right to be unconditional. Management's expectations whether they will subsequently
exercise the right to defer settlement do not affect classification of liabilities. The right to defer only exists if
the entity complies with any relevant conditions as of the end of the reporting period. A liability Is classified
as current if a condition is breached at or before the reporting date even If a waiver of that condition Is
obtalned from the lender after the end of the reporting period. Conversely, a loan is classified as non-
current if a loan covenant is breached only after the reporting date. In addition, the amendments include
clarifying the classification requirements for debt a company might settle by converting it into equity.
‘Settlement’ is defined as the extinguishment of a liability with cash, other resources embodying economic
benefits or an entity's own equity instruments. There is an exception for convertible instruments that might
be converted into equity, but only for those instruments where the conversion option is classified as an
equity instrument as a separate component of a compound financial instrument.

Classlification of lfabllities as current or non-current, deferral of effective date — Amendments to IAS
1 (Iissued on 15 July 2020 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023).
The amendment to 1AS 1 on classification of liabillties as current or non-current was issued in January
2020 with an original effective date 1 January 2022. However, in response to the Covid-18 pandemic, the
effective date was deferred by one year to provide companies with more time to implement classification
changes resuiting from the amended guidance.
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] New Accounting Pronouncements {Continued)

Proceeds before Intended use, Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract, Reference fo the
Conceptual Framework — narrow scope amendments to IAS 16, IAS 37 and IFRS 3, and Annual
iImprovements to IFRSs 2018-2020 — amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41 (Issued on
14 May 2020 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022). The amendment
to |IAS 16 prohibits an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of PPE any proceeds recelved from
salling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its Intended use. The proceeds from
selling such items, together with the costs of producing them, are now recognised in profit or loss. An
entity will use IAS 2 to measure the cost of those items. Cost will not include depreciation of the asset
being tested because It is not ready for its intended use. The amendment to IAS 16 also clarifies that an
entity is ‘testing whether the asset is functioning properly’ when It asseseses the technical and physical
performance of the asset. The financial performance of the asset is not relevant to this assessment. An
asset might therefore be capable of operating as intended by management and sublect to depreciation
before it has achieved the level of operating performance expectad by management.

The amendment to IAS 37 clarifies the meaning of ‘costs to fulfil a contract’. The amendment explains that
the direct cost of fulfiling a contract comprises the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract; and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fufilling. The amendment also clarifies that, before a
separate provision for an onerous contract is established, an entity recognises any impairment loss that
has occurred on assets used in fulfilling the contract, rather than on assets dedicated to that contract.

IFRS 3 was amended to refer to the 2018 Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, in order to
determine what constitutes an assst or a liability in & business combination. Prior to the amendment, IFRS
3 referred to the 2001 Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting. In addition, a new exception in IFRS
3 was added for liabilities and contingent liabllities. The exception specifies that, for some types of liabllities
and contingent liabilities, an entity applying IFRS 3 should Instead refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, rather than
the 2018 Conceptual Framework. Without this new exception, an entity would have recognised some
liabllities In a business combination that it would not recognise under IAS 37. Therefore, immediately after
the acquisition, the entity would have had to derecognise such liabllities and recognise a gain that did not
depict an economic gain. It was also clarified that the acquirer should not recognise contingent assets, as
defined in IAS 37, at the acquisition date.

The amendment to IFRS 9 addresses which fees should be included in the 10% test for derecognition of
financial liabilities. Costs or fees could be pald to either third parties or the lender. Under the amendment,
costs or fees paid to third parties wlill not be included In the 10% test.

IFRS 1 allows an exemption if a subsidiary adopts IFRS at a later date than its parent. The subsidiary can
measure its assets and liabilities at the carrying amounts that wouid be included in its parent’s consolidated
financial statements, based on the parent's date of transition to IFRS, if no adjustments were made for
consolidation procedures and for the sffects of the business combination in which the parent acquired the
subsidiary. IFRS 1 was amended to allow entities that have taken this IFRS 1 exemption to also measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by the parent, based on the parent's date of
transition to IFRS. The amendment to IFRS 1 extends the above exemption to cumulative translation
differences, in order to reduce costs for first-time adopters. This amendment will also apply to assoclates
and joint ventures that have taken the same IFRS 1 exemption.

The requirement for entities to exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring fair value under IAS 41 was
removed. This amendment Is Intended to align with the requirement in the standard to discount cash flows
on a post-tax basls.

Interest rate benchmark (IBOR) reform — phase 2 amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 (Issued on 27 August 2020 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021). The Phase 2 amendments address issues that arise from the implementation of the reforms,
including the replacement of one benchmark with an alternative one. The amendments cover the following
areas:
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6 New Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

» Accounting for changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows as a result of IBOR reform:
For instruments to which the amortised cost measurement applies, the amendments require entities, as
a practical expedient, to account for a change In the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as
a result of IBOR reform by updating the effective interest rate using the guidance In paragraph B5.4.5
of IFRS 9, As a result, no Immedlate gain or loss Is recognised. This practical expedient applies only to
such a change and only to the extent It is necessary as a direct consequence of IBOR reform, and the
new basis is economically equivalent to the previous basis. Insurers applying the temporary exemption
from IFRS 9 are also required to apply the same practical expedient. IFRS 16 was also amended to
require lessees to use a similar practical expedient when accounting for lease modifications that
change the basis for determining future lease payments as a result of IBOR reform.

e End date for Phase 1 rellef for non contractually specified risk components in hedging relationships:
The Phase 2 amendments require an entity to prospectively cease to apply the Phase 1 reliefs to
non-contractually specified risk component at the earller of when changes are made to the non-
contractually specified risk component, or when the hedging relationship is discontinued. No end date
was provided in the Phase 1 amendments for risk components.

» Additional temporary exceptions from applying specific hedge accounting requirements: The Phase 2
amendments provide some additional temporary rellefs from applying specific IAS 39 and IFRS 9
hedge accounting requirements to hedging relationships directly affected by IBOR reform.

* Addlitional IFRS 7 disclosures related to IBOR reform: The amendments require disclosure of: (i) how
the entity is managing the transition to altemative benchmark rates, its progress and the risks arising
from the transition; (i) quantitative Information about derivatives and non-derivatives that have yet to
transition, disaggregated by significant interest rate benchmark; and (jii) a description of any changes
to the risk management strategy as a result of IBOR reform.

Unless otherwise described above, the new standards and interpretations are not expected to affect
significantly the Bank’s financial statements.

7 Cash and Cash Equlvalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

2020 2018
Cash on hand 20,009 24,381
Current accounts with the CBAR 44,329 67.271
Short-term daposits placed in the CBAR 14,703 18,033
Accounts with other credit institutions 104,942 92,932
Less cradit loss allowance (443) {221)
Cash and cash equivalents 183,540 202,396

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank had short-term deposits placed in the CBAR amounting to AZN 14,888
(2019: AZN 17,940) maturing until 11 January 2021 (2019: 13 January 2020) with the annual Interest rates
of 5.76 — 6.01% p.a (2019: 5.76% p.a).

Current accounts with other credit institutions consist of interest bearing correspondent account balances
with resident and non-resident banks of amounting AZN Nil (2019: AZN 5,088) and AZN 70,448 (2010:
AZN 78,879), respectively.
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7 Cash and Cash Equlvalents (Continued)

The table below discloses the credit quality of cash and cash equivalents balances based on credit risk
grades at 31 December 2020. Refer to Note 23 for the description of the Bank's credit risk grading system.

Cash balances withthe  Accounts with Total

CBAR, exciuding other credit

mandatory reserves institutions
- Excellent - 91,302 91,302
- Good 58,032 13,640 72,672
Less credit loss allowance (222) (221) {443)

Total cash and cash equivalents, excluding

cash on hand 58,810 104,721 163,531

For the purpose of ECL measurement cash and cash equivalents balances are included in Stage 1. Refer

to Note 1 for the ECLL measurement approach.

The credit quality of cash and cash equivalents balances based on credit risk grades at 31 December 2019

is as foliows:

Cash balances with the  Accounts with Total

CBAR, excluding other cradit

mandstory reserves Institutions
- Excellent - 77,723 77,723
- Good 85,304 15,209 100,513
Less credit loss allowance (143) (78) (221)

Total cash and cash equlvalents, excluding

cash on hand 85,161 92,854 178,015

As of 31 December 2020, the Bank had AZN 70,842 or 68% (2019: AZN 70,811 or 76%) of total amounts

with other credit Institutions placed with one counterparty (2019: one).
Information on related party balances is disclosed in Note 25
8 Amounts Due from Credit Institutions

Amaunts due from credit institutions comprise:

Shori-term deposiis placed in banks
Obligatory reserve with the CBAR

Amounts due from credit institutions (gross)

Less: allowance for Impalrment

Amounts due from credlit institutions {net)

2020 2019
9,712 18,639
1,756 2,457

11,468 21,008

(8 (110)

11,460 20,986

Credit Institutions are required to maintain a non-interest earning cash deposit (obligatory reserve) with
the CBAR, the amount of which depends on the level of funds atiracted by the credit institution. The Bank’s
ability to withdraw such deposit is slgntﬂcagtly restricted by the statutory legislation.
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8 Amounts Due from Credit Institutions (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank had short-term deposits placed In banks amounting to AZN 9,690
(2019: AZN 18,639) maturing in Feb-Aug 2021 (2019: Feb-May-Oct 2020), with the annual interest rates of

0.17-1.5% p.a (2019:3.0-7.5% p.a.).

Analysis by credit quality of amounts due from credit Institutions outstanding at 31 December 2020, is as
follows: Refer to Note 24 for the estimated fair value of each class of amounts due from credit institutions.
Interest rate analysis of due from credit institutions Is disclosed in Note 23. Information on related party

balances is disclosed in Note 25:

Stage 1 Total
{12-months ECL)
Placements with credit institutions
- Good 11,468 11,468
Gross carrylng amount 11,488 11,:
Credit loss allowance (8) (8)
Total due from credit institutions (carrying amount) 11,4680 11,480

Analysis by credit quality of amounts due from credit institutions outsianding at 31 December 2019, is as

follows:
Stage 1 Total
~ {12-months ECL)
Placements with credit institutions
- Excellent - -
- Good 21,008 21,096
Gross carrying amount 21,006 21,006
Credit loss allowance {110) {110)
Total due from credk Institutions {carrying amount) 20,986 20,986
9 Loans to Customers
Loans to customers comprise:
31 December 31 December
2020 2018
Gross carrying amount of loans to customers at AC 167,377 204,171
Less credit loss allowance (41,604) (43,493)
Total carying amount of ioans to customers at AC 125,683 160,678
Total loans to customers 125,683 160,678

As at 31 December 2020, out of the total amount of loans 26.3% (2018: 37.6%) are denominated in foreign

currencles.
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9 Loans to Customers (Continued)

Gross carrying amount and credit loss allowance amount for loans to customers at AC by classes at 31

December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are disclosed in the table below:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Gross Creditioss Carrying Gross Credit loss Carrying
carrying allowance amount carrying allowance amount
amount amount
Loans to corporate /
commercial customers 96,499 21,376 75,124 129,808 23,323 106,485
Loans to SME 15,326 8,230 7,086 14,946 8,310 6,636
Consumer Loans 41,635 10,682 30,843 49,096 10,241 38,855
Residential Mortgage loans 14,017 1,397 12,620 10,321 1,619 8,702
Total loans to customers at
AC 167,377 41,694 125,683 204,171 43,493 160,678

More detalled explanation of classes of loans to legal entities is provided below:
e Loans to corporate / commercial customers - loans issued to commerclal entities;
s Loans to SME - loans issued to small and medium-sized enterprises;
o Consumer Loans — loans [ssued to individuals for personal needs;
¢ Residentlal Mortgage loans - loans issued to individuals for mortgage purposes.

The following table discloses the changes in the credit loss allowance and gross carrying amount for loans
to customers carried at amortised cost between the beginning and the end of the reporting period and

comparative periods.
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9 Loans to Customers (Continued)
B Credit loss aliowance
Stage1 Stage2 Stage 3 Total
(12- (lfetime (ifetime
months ECL for ECL for
ECL) SICR} cradit
im-
 — e — palred) -
Loans to corporate /
commerclal customers
At 31 December 2019 378 2015 20930 23,323
Movements with impact on
credit loss allowance charge
for the period:
Transfers:
- to lifetime (from Stage 1 to
Stage 2) (107) 964 - 857
- to credit-impalred (from
Stage 1 and Stage 2 to
Stage 3) (9) (52) 953 892
= 0 12-months ECL {from
Stage 2 and Stage 3 to
Stage 1) - - - -
New originated or purchased 217 136 - 353
Derecognized during the
period (77) - {1,4068) (1,483)
Changes in accrued Interest - - - -
Partial derecognition (1563) (226) (513)  (892)
Modification of contractual
cash flows (18) 138 - 120
Total movements with Impact
on credit loss allowance
charge for the period (147) 960 {966) {153)
Movements without impact
on credit loss allowance
charge for the period:
Write-offs - - (1,785) (1,795)
At 31 December 2020 231 2975 18,169 21,375

Gross carrylng amount

Stage 1 Stage 2 3 Total
(12- (lifetime (Ifetims
months ECL for ECL for
ECL) SICR) credit
im-
paired) =~
88,321 7,732 33,755 120,808
{11,476) 11,476 - -
(1.729) (2,859) 4,588
33766 448 - as212
(16,122) (5) (2,565) (18,692)
- - 2,683 2,683
(46,449)  (904) (2,364) (49,717)
(42,010) 8,154 2,342 (31,514)
- - (1,795)  (1,795)
48,311 15886 34,302 06,499
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9 Loans to Customers (Continued)
Credit loss allowance Gross carrying amount
Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total
(12- (lifetime (lifetime {12 (lfetime (lifetime
months ECLfor ECL for months ECLfor ECL for
ECL) SICR} credit ECL) SICR) credit
Im- Im-
palred) palred)
Loans to corporate /
commercial customers
At 31 December 2018 379 347 21942 22,608 60,645 11,462 34,751 106,858
Movements with impact on
credit loss allowance charge
for the period:
Transfers:
~ to lifeime (from Stage 1 to
Stage 2) (429) 429 - - {3,040) 3,040 - -
- to credit-impaired (from
Stage 1 and Stage 2 to
Stage 3) (101) 101 - - (101) 101 -
-to 12-months ECL (from
Stage 2 and Stage 3 to
Stage 1) - - - - - - - -
New originated or purchased 707 1,584 1,743 4034 80,607 4587 3,243 88,437
Derecognized during the
period (247) (243) (872) (1,362) (47,707) (11,218) (1,638) (60,564)
Other movements (32) N (241) (274) (2,184) (37) 274 {1,947)
Total movements with
impact on credit loss
allowance charge for the
period (1) 1,668 731 2,308 27,676 (3,,730) 1,980 25,926
Movements without Impact
on credit loss allowance
charge for the perlod:
Wirite-offs - (1,743) (1,743) - - (2,976) (2,976)
At 31 Decamber 2019 378 2,015 20,830 23,323 88,321 7,732 33,755 120,808
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9 Loans to Customers (Continued)
- Credit loss allowance Gross carrying amount
Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total
(12- (lifetime (lifetime {12- (Ifetime (lifetime
months ECL for ECL for months ECL for ECL for
ECL) SICR) credit ECL) SICR) credht
Im- im-
palred) palred)
Loans to SME
At 31 December 2019 14 21 8,275 8,310 2,240 49 12,657 14,946
Movements with impact on
credlt foes allowance charge
for the period:
Transfers:
- to Iifetime {from Stage 1 to
Stage 2) (11) 17 - 6 (1,797} 1,797 - -
- to credlt-impaired (from
Stage 1 and Stage 2 to
Stage 3) - (5) 65 60 - (85) 85 -
~-to 12-months ECL (from
Stage 2 and Stage 3 to
Stage 1) - - - - - - - -
New originated or purchased 8 - 9 17 737 1 9 747
Derecognised during the
period - - (98) (98) {38) (3) {210) {(251)
Changes In accrued interest - - - - - - 579 578
Partial derecognition (6) (22) - {28) {(429) (44) (165) (638)
Modification of contractual
cash flows 8 - 12 20 - - - -
Total movements with
Impact on credit loss
allowance charge for the
period (1) (10) {12) (23) (1,527) 1,888 208 437
Movements without impact
on credit loss allowance
charge for the perlod:
Write-offs - - (57) {67) - - (57) (57)

At 31 December 2020 13 " 8,206 8,230 713 1,715 12,888 15,328
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9 Loans to Customers (Continued)
Credit loss allowance Gross carrying amount -
Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total
{12- (lifetime (lifetime {12- (lifetime (lifetime
months ECL for ECL. for months ECL for ECL for
ECL) SICR) credit ECL) SICR) credit
Im- Im-
o palred) paired)
Loans to SME
At 31 December 2018 20 34 9,007 9,061 3,237 1489 14711 19,447
Movements with impact on
credit loss allowance charge
for the perfod:
Transfers:
-to lifetime (from Stage 1 to
Stage 2) {34} 34 - - (92) 92 - -
- to credit-impaired (from
Stage 1 and Stage 2 to
Stage 3) - {14) 14 - - (737) 737 -
- to 12-months ECL {from
Stage 2 and Stage 3 to
Stoge 1) - - - - - - . -
New originated or purchased 5 - 9 14 829 - 16 845
Derecognised during the
perlod {24) (20) {661) (705) (1,529) (805) (1.1582) (3,486)
Other movements 47 (13) 265 209 (205) - 54 (151)

Total movements with

Impact on credit loss

allowance charge for the

period (6) {13) (373) (392) (897)

(1450)  (345) (2,792)

Movements without impact
on cradlt loss allowance

charge for the period:
Write-offs - - (359) {359) - - {1,709) {1,708)
At 31 December 2019 14 21 8,275 8,310 2,240 49 12857 14,946
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9 Loans to Customers (Continued)

Cradit loss allowance

Gross carryinag amount

Stage1 Stage Stage3 Total Stage1 Stage2 Stage3
(12- 2 (lifetime (12- (lifetime (lifetime
months (lifetim ECL for months ECLfor ECL for
ECL}) eECL credit ECL) SICR) credit
for im- Im-
SICR) _paired) palred)
Consumer loans
At 31 December 2018 1,439 109 8,603 10,241 37,613 1,866 9,617
Movements with impact on
credit loss allowance charge
for the period:
Transfers:
- to lifetime ({from Stage 1 to
Stage 2) (26) 392 - 366 (7570) 17,570 -
= to credi-impaired (from
Stage 1 and Stage 2 fo
Stage 3) - (84) 837 753 @ (1.471) 1473
- to 12-months ECL (from
Stage 2 and Stage 3 to
Stage 1) 18 (265) (3) (250) 4,804 {4,600) (4
New originated or purchased 386 15 - 401 25,587 144 -
Derecognised during the
period (26) (10) {238) {(274) (5,417) {189) {297)
Changes in accrued Interest - - - - - - 564
Partlal derecognition (1,857) (94) 1,524 (227) (27,239) (1.007) 1,612
Modlification of contractual - (M (2) (9) - - -
cash flows
Total movements with
impact on credit loss
allowance charge for the
period (1,305) (53) 2,118 760 (10,057) {543) 3,348
Movements without impact
on credit loss allowance
charge for the period:
Write-offs - (309} {(309) - - (309)
At 31 December 2020 134 86 10,502 10,692 27,558 1,323 12,656

Total

26,711
(5,903)
564
(27,624)

(7,252)

(309)

41,535
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9 Loans to Customers (Continued)

Credit loss allowance

Gross carrylng amount

Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total
(12- (lifetime (fifetime (12- (lifeime (lifetime
months ECL for ECL for months ECLfor ECL for
ECL) SICR) credit ECL) SICR) credit
Im- im=
palred) paired)
Consumer loans
At 31 December 2018 245 51 12,928 13,224 30,808 1,041 14,650 55,587
Movements with Impact on
credit loss allowance charge
for the period:
Transfars:
~ to lifetime (from Stage 1 to
Stage 2) (12) 12 - - (1,224 1,224 - -
- to crediidmpaired (from
Stage 1 and Stage 2 to
Stage 3) (4) (15} 19 - (309) (244) 553 -
- to 12-months ECL {from
Stage 2 and Stage 3 to
Stage 1) 5 (5) - - 241 {241) - -
New originated or purchased 1,305 60 128 1,493 16,607 430 224 17,261
Derecognised during the
period (40) (18) (2,242) (2,300) (13,323) (460) (2,818) (16,601)
Other movements (60) 24 (544) (580) (4,275) 116 (1,167) (5,326)
Total movements with
Impact on credit loss
allowance charge for the
period 1,194 58 (2,839) (1,387) (2,283) 825 (3,208) (4,6686)
Movements without impact
on credit loss allowance
charge for the period:
Write-offs - - {1,598) (1,596) - - (1,825) (1,825)
At 31 Decomber 2019 1,439 109 8,693 10,241 37,613 1,868 9,617 49,008
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9 Loans to Customers {(Continued)

Credit ioas allowance

Gross carrying amount

Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total
{12- (lifetime (lifetime (12- (Iifeime (lifstime
months ECLfor ECL for months ECLfor ECL for
ECL) SICR) credit ECL} SICR} credit
Im- Im-
paired) palred)
Residential mortgage loans
At 31 Decomber 2019 66 2 1,551 1,619 7,682 178 2463 10,321
Movements with impact on
credit loss alfowance charge
for the period:
Transfers:
- to lifetime (from Stage 1 to
Stage 2) (1) 3 - 2 (1,808) 1,806 - -
- to credit-impaired (from
Stage 1 and Stege 2 1o
Stage 3) - - 35 a5 {62) {17) 79 -
= to 12-months ECL {from
Stage 2 and Stage 3 to
Stage 1) 2 (2) (51) (51) 1443 (1,336) {107) -
New originated or purchased 8 - 8 16 4,795 29 " 4,905
Derecognised during the
pericd - - {55} {55) {206) (68) (110) (384)
Changes in accrued interest - - - - - - 115 115
Partial derecognition (56) 2) (77) {135) (739) (26) {141) {906)
Modification of contractual
cash flows - “ - - - - - -
Total movements with
impact on credit loss
allowance charge for the
period {47) (1) {140) (188) 3,825 258 {153) 3,730
Movements without Impact
on cradlt loss allowance
charge for the period:
Write-offs - - {34) (34) - - (34) (34)
At 31 December 2020 19 1 1,377 1,307 11,307 434 2,276 14,017
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9 Loans to Customers {Continued)
Credit loss allowance Gross carrying amount i
Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total
(12- ({lifetime (lifetime (12- (lifetime (Ifetime
months ECL for ECL for months ECL for ECLfor
ECL) SICR) credit ECL) SICR) credit
Im- Im-
palred) palred)
Residential morigage loans
At 31 Decomber 2018 13 1 1,588 1,602 6,708 229 2,556 9,493
Movemenits with Impact on
credit ioss allowance charge
for the period:
Transfers:
- o lifetime (from Stage 1 to
Stage 2) {1) 1 - - (89) 89 - -
- to creditdimpaired (from
Stage 1 and Stage Z to
Stage 3) - {1) 1 - {51) (55) 106 -
- to 12-months ECL (from
Stage 2 and Stage 3 to
Stage 1) - . - - 23 (23) - -
New originated or purchased 20 - - 20 1,911 - - 1,911
Derecognlsad during the
perlod {10) - {61) {71) (313) {37) {188) (538)
Other movements 44 1 23 68

(507) @7) (11 (545

Total movements with

Impact on credit loss

allowance charge for the

period 53 1 (37) 17 974 (53) {83) 828

Movemaents without Impact
on credlt loss allowance
charge for the perlod:

Wirite-offs

At 31 December 2019 68 2 1,551 1,619 7,682 178 2463 10,321

The credit loss allowance for loans to customers recognised in the period is impacted by a varlety of
factors. Detalls of ECL measurement are provided in Note 23. The main reasons for movements are as
follows:

o Transfers between Stage 1, 2 and 3 due to balances experiencing significant Increases {or
decreases) of credit risk or becoming credit-impaired in the period, and the consequent "step up”
(or "step down") between 12-month and Lifetime ECL;

» Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognised during the period, as well as
releases for financial instruments derecognised in the perlod;

* Wirite-offs of allowances related fo assets that were written off during the perlod.
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9 Loans to Customers {Continued)
Allowance for Iimpalrment of loans to customers

Information about collateral at 31 December 2020 Is as follows:

Corporate Small Consumer Reslidential Total
lending business lending mortgages
lending

Unsecured loans 15,121 2,642 40,498 374 56,635
Loans collateralized by:
Real estate 72,370 12,503 467 13,592 98,932
Cash deposits 5,831 - 105 - 5,936
Other assets 3,303 177 394 - 3,874
Less Impalrment provisions {21,375) {8,230) {10,692) (1,397) (41,694)
Total loans to customers 75,250 7,002 30,772 12,569 125,683

Information about collateral at 31 December 2019 is as follows:

Corporate Small Consumer Residential Total
lending business lending mortgages
lending -

Unsecured loans 13,812 1,724 48,138 277 63,951
Loans collateralized by:
Real gstate 89,663 13,040 351 10,044 112,988
Cash deposits 16,622 - 187 - 16,809
Other assets 9,820 182 419 - 10,421
Less impalrment provisions (23,322) {8,310) {10,240) (1,619) (43,491)
Total loans to customers 106,485 6,636 38,855 8,702 160,878

Other assets malnly include vehicles and equipment. The disclosure above represents the lower of the
carrying value of the loan or collateral taken; the remaining part is disclosed within the unsecured
exposures. The carrying value of loans was allocated based on liquidity of the assets taken as collateral.

It is the Bank's policy to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings across the credit portfollo. This
facilitates focused management of the applicable risks and the comparison of credit exposures across all
lines of business and products. The rating system is supported by a varlety of financial analytics, combined
with processed market information to provide the main Inputs for the measurement of counterparty risk. All
internal risk ratings are tallored to the various categories and are derived in accordance with the Bank's
rating policy. The attributable risk ratings are assessed and updated regularly.

Loans to customers and other financial assets with good financial position and good debt service are
included in the standard grade. Sub-standard grade comprises loans below standard grade that had
changes in the terms and conditions of loan agreements, but not individually impaired.

The following tables contain analyses of the credlit risk exposure of loans to customers measured at AC
and for which ECL allowance is recognised. The carrying amount of loans to customers below also
represents the Bank's maximum exposurs to credit risk on these loans.
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9 Loans to Customers (Continued)

Analysls by credit quality of loans outstanding at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
{12-months (iifetime ECLfor  (lifetime ECL for
ECL) SICR)  creditim-palred)

Cormporate lending
Less than 30 days 46,311 13,185 4,560 64,088
30 to 90 days overdue - 2,684 - 2,684
91-180 days overdue - 7 - 7
181 to 360 days overdue - 44 44
Over 360 days overdue - 29,828 29,826
Gross carrying amount 48,311 15,886 34,430 96,627
Credit loss allowance (231) (2,975) {18,170) (21,376)
Carrying amount 48,080 12,911 16,260 75,251
Small business lending
Less than 30 days 713 1,715 183 2,611
30 to 90 days overdue - - - -
91-180 days overdue - - - -
181 to 360 days overdue - - - -
Over 360 days overdue - - 12,711 12,711
Gross carrying amount 713 1,715 12,804 15,322
Cradlt loss allowance (13) {11) (8,206) {8,230)
Carrying amount 700 1,704 4,088 7,002
Consumer lending
Less than 30 days 27,0863 447 2,593 30,103
30 to 90 days overdue 493 876 €9 1,438
91-180 days overdue - - 124 124
181 to 380 days overdue - - 790 790
Over 360 days overdue - - 9,000 9,000
Gross carrying amount 27,556 1,323 12,585 41,4684
Credit loss allowance {134) (63) (10,485) (10,692)
Camrylng amount 27,422 1,260 2,080 30,772
Residential mortgage loans
Less than 30 days 11,130 283 - 11,413
30 to 90 days overdue 178 151 2 331
91-180 days overdus - - - -
181 to 380 days overdue - - - -
Over 360 days overdus - - 2,222 2,222
Gross carrying amount 11,308 434 2,224 13,968
Credit loss allowance (18) {1) {1,378) (1,397)
Carrylng amount 11,280 433 846 12,569
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9 Loans to Customers (Continued)

Analysis by credit quality of loans outstanding at 31 December 2019 is as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
(12-months  (lifetime ECL  (lifetime ECL
ECL) for SICR) for credit Im-
paired)
Corporate lending
Less than 30 days 88,321 5,370 - 93,691
30 fo 80 days overdue - 2,362 - 2,362
91-180 days overdue - - 3,340 3,340
181 to 360 days overdue - 182 192
Over 360 days overdue - 30,223 30,223
Gross carrying amount 86,321 7,732 33,755 129,808
Credit loss allowance (378) {2,015) (20,930) {23,323)
Carrying amount 87,943 5,717 12,625 106,485
Small business lending
Less than 30 days 2,240 6 a5 2,281
30 to 90 days overdue - 43 - 43
©1-180 days overdue - - - -
181 to 360 days overdue - - 707 707
Over 360 days overdue - - 11,918 11,915
Gross carrying amount 2,240 49 12,657 14,946
Credlt loss allowance (14) (21) (8,275) (8,310)
Carrying amount 2,226 28 4,382 6,836
Consumer lending
Less than 30 days 37,613 1,086 18 38,717
30 to 90 days overdue - 780 14 794
91-180 days overdue - 227 227
181 to 380 days overdue - - 437 437
Over 380 days overdue - - 8,921 8,921
Gross carrylng amount 37,613 1,866 9,817 49,008
Credit loss allowance {1,440) {108) (8,692) (10,241)
Carrylng amount 36,173 1,757 925 38,855
Residential morigage loans
Lass than 30 days 7,682 9 - 7,691
30 to 90 days overdue - 168 - 168
91-180 days overdue - - 28 28
181 to 360 days overdue - - 50 50
Over 360 days overdue - 2,384 2,384
Gross camylng amount 7,682 177 2,462 10,321
Credit loss allowance {67) {2 (1,550) (1,619)
Carrylng amount 7,618 175 912 8,702
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9 Loans to Customers (Continued)

Impairment assessment. The maln conslderations for the loan impairment assessment are based on
the Information provided by the roll-rate model, which measures the movement of the past due amounts
balances in varlous time brackets. The Bank addresses impairment assessment In two areas: individually
assessed allowances and collectively assessed allowances.

Individually assessed aflowances. The Bank determines the allowances appropriate for each individuaily
significant loan on an individual basis. Items considered when determining allowance amounts include
the sustainability of the counterparty's business plan, its abllity to improve performance once a financial
difficulty has arisen, projected receipts and the expected dividend payout should bankruptcy ensue,
the availabillty of other financial support and the realizable value of collateral, the timing of the expected
cash flows and expected recoverability of unsecured portion based on management estimates.
The impalrment losses are evaluated at each reporting date, unless unforeseen circumstances require
more careful attention.

Collectively assessed allowances. Allowances are assessed collectively for losses on loans to customers
that are not individually significant (including credlt cards, residential mortgages and unsecured consumer

Impairment losses are estimated by taking into consideration the roll-rate model assessment.
The impairment allowance is then reviewed by credit management to ensure alignment with the Bank's
overall policy.

Financial guarantees and letters of credit are assessed and provision made in a simiar manner as for
loans.

The primary factors that the Bank considers in determining whether a loan is Impaired are its overdue
status and realis abllity of related collateral, if any. As a result, the Bank presents above an ageing analysis
of loans that are individually determined to be impalred.

The financial effect of collateral is presented by disclosing collateral values separately for (i} those assets
where collateral and other credit enhancements are equal to or exceed carrying value of the asset (“over-
collateralised assets”™) and (i) those assets where collateral and other credit enhancements are less than
the carrying value of the asset (*under-collateralisad asseis").

The effect of collateral at 31 December 2020:

Over-collateralized Under-collateralized
Assets o Asgets
Carrying value  Fair vaiue of Carrying value  Falr value of
= - of the agsets collateral  of the assets collateral
Corporate lending 48,457 97.486 26,668 7,205
Small business lending 3,385 8,505 3,701 1,966
Consumer lending 850 2,258 20,902 146
Residential morigages 12,619 24,867 1 -
The effect of collateral at 31 December 2019:
Over=collaterallsed Under-collaterallsed
o Assets _ Assets
Carrying value  Falr value of Carrying value  Falr value of
- o of the assets collateral  of the assets collateral
Corporate lending 66,638 147,633 62,923 36,949
Small business iending 3,348 7,196 11,479 6,404
Consumer iending 736 2,511 48,678 356
Reslidential mortgages 9,004 16,971 1,275 605
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8 Loans to Customers (Continued)

The following table provides information on carrying value of loans, for which the Bank did not recognise
any expected credit loss allowance because of significant excess of collateral value over the gross carrying
value of these loans.

31 December 31 Decamber
in thousands of Azerbaijani Manais 2020 2019
Comporate lending 4,425 -
Small business lending - -
Consumer lending - -
Resldential morigages - -
Total significantly over-coliateralised
loans and advances to customers

carried at AC 4,425 -

Individually impalred loans

As at 31 December 2020, loans In the amount of AZN 43,091 were assessed individually. An individual
impairment allowance of AZN 26,626 were recognized for such loans.

In accordance with the CBAR requirements, loans may only be written off with the approval of
the Supervisory Board and, in certain cases, with the respective decislon of the Court.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of
the counterparty. Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptabllity of types of collateral and
valuation parameters.

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

»  for corporate lending — charges over rea! estate and trade receivables, third party guarantees:

»  for consumer lending - cash, charges over credited consumer appliances and mortgages over
residentlal properties;

» for auto lending - cash and liens over vehicles.

Management monitors the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral in accordance with
the underlying agreement, and monitors the market value of collateral obtained during its review of
the adequacy of the allowance for loan impairment.

Concentration of loans to customers

As of 31 December 2020, the Bank had a concentration of loans represented by AZN 41,4368 or 26% of
gross loan portfolio (2019: AZN 65,084 or 32%) due from the ten {2019; ten) largest third party borrowers.

Loans have been extended to the following types of customers (amounts are presented prior to allowance):

2020 2019
Private companies 96,627 129,808
Individuals 70,750 74,383
Gross loans to customers 167,377 204,171
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9 Loans to Customers (Continued)

Loans are provided within Azerbaijan in the following industry sectors (amounts are presented prior to
allowance):

- 2020 2019
Individuals 70,750 74,363
Trading enterprises 58,828 86,985
Real estate construction 23,347 24,483
Manufacturing 14,454 18,340
Gross loans to customers 167,377 204171

Refer to Note 24 for the estimated fair value of each class of loans to customers. Maturity analysis of loans
to customers is disclosed in Note 1 . Information on related party balances is discloged in Note 25.

10 Investments In debt securities

B 2020 2019
Notes issued by the Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan (CBAR) 20,311 33,868
Bonds Issued by the Ministry of Finance of Azerballan Republic 2,815 2,798
Other €0 60
Less credit loss allowance {20) {190)
Total 23,006 36,538

As of 31 December 2020, all Notes issued by the Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan (CBAR) and
Other Bonds were classified as Stage 1.

Nominal interest rates and maturities of debt securities are as follows:

2020 2019
Annual Annual
B Interest rate Maturlty Interest rats Maturity
Notes issued by the CBAR 5.76%-6.01% Jan'21 5.76%-6.01% Jan'20

Bonds issued by the Ministry of Finance of

Azerbaijan Republic 8.46% - B.78% Mar"21 8.46% - 8.79% Mar"21

Notes from CBAR has original maturity of 28 days and as per Bank policy represents cash and cash
equivalents. Notes from CBAR are nelther past due nor impaired.

Bonds from the Ministry of Finance of Azerbaljan Republic has original maturity of 1,092 days. Bonds from
Ministry of Finance are neither past due nor Impaired.

All debt securities are measured at amortised cost. The credit quality of the debt securities is good. Refer to
Note 23 for the description of the Bank's credit risk grading system.

Refer to Note 24 for the estimated fair value of notes Issued by Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan
and other bonds.
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11 Property and Equipment

The movements in tanglble assets were as follows:

Leagehold Compurters Furniture Motor Total
Improvements and office and fixtures vshicles
equipment

Cost
31 December 2019 8,858 13,792 2,023 111 24,784
Additions a2 2,112 7 3 2,164
Disposals - - - - -
Transfers - - - - -
31 December 2020 8,880 15,904 2,030 114 26,838
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2019 (7,3286) {11,628) (1,849) {107) (20,910)
Depraciation charge (622) {1,253) (48) (3} (1,926)
Disposals - - - - -
Transfers - - - - -
31 December 2020 (7,948) (12,881) {1,867) (110) (22,836)
Net book value
31 December 2019 1,532 2,184 174 4 3,874
31 December 2020 942 3,023 133 4 4,102

Leasshold Computers Furniture Motor Total

improvements and office and fixtures vehicles
eguipment

Cost
31 December 2018 8,770 13,067 1,085 110 23,932
Additions 88 940 7 1 1,036
Disposals - {162) (11) - (173)
Transfers - (53) 42 - {11)
31 December 2019 8,858 13,782 2,023 111 24,784
Accumulated depreclation
31 December 2018 {6,857) {10,820) {1,781) {101) (19,350)
Depraciation charge (689) {833) (77) (8) {1,585)
Disposals - 25 9 - 34
Transfers - - - - -
31 December 2019 (7,326) (11,628) {1,848) {107) (20,010)
Net book value
31 Dacember 2018 2,113 2,247 204 9 4,573
31 December 2019 1,532 2,184 174 4 3,874

As at 31 December 2020 gross carrying amount of fully depreciated property and equipment was AZN

12,213 (2019: AZN 11,564).
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12 intanglble Assets
The movements In intangible assets were as follows:
Licenses Computer Total
. - software
Cost
31 December 2019 10,602 11,273 21,965
Additions 985 1,314 2,299
Disposais - (5) (5)
Transfers - (3) ®)
31 December 2020 11,677 12,579 24,258
Accumulated amortization
31 Dacember 2019 {9,534) {(4,541) (14,075)
Amortization charge (1.326) (1,178) {2,504)
31 December 2020 (10,880) (5,719) (16,579)
Net book value
31 December 2019 1,158 8,732 7,890
31 December 2020 817 6,860 7,877
Licenses Computer Total
o _— __ software
Cost
31 December 2018 9,568 10,212 19,780
Additions 1,144 1,061 2,205
Disposals (31) (31)
Transfers 11 11
31 December 2019 10,602 11,273 21,9685
Accumulated amortization
31 December 2018 (8,336) {3,504) (11,840)
Amortization charge (1,188) {1,037) {2,235)
31 December 2019 (9,534) (4,541) {14,075)
Net book value
31 December 2018 1,232 8,708 7,940
31 December 2019 1,158 6,732 7,890

As at 31 December 2020
(2018: AZN 8,661).

gross carrying amount of fully amortized intangible assets was AZN 10,262
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13 Right of Use Assets and Lease Liabllitles

The Bank leases bulldings, vehicles and others. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods but
may have extension options.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Bank elected not to separate lease and
non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Extension and termination options are inciuded in a number of leases across the Bank. These are used to
maximise operationai flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Bank's operations. The majority
of extension and termination options held are exercisable by both the Bank and the respective lessors.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding ilabllity from the
date when the leased asset becomes avalilable for use by the Bank.

The Bank has received 3 AZN COVID-19 related monthly rent concession on one contract and It results
with the decrease in net right of use asset and lease liability 47 AZN and 68 AZN, respectively. The
decrease In interest and depraclation expenses were 1 AZN and 2 AZN, respectively.

The right of use assets by class of underlying ltems is analysed as follows:

Bulldings Vehicles Other Total
Carrying amount at
31 December 2019 5,302 359 - 5,751
Additlona 5,905 680 158 6,743
Disposals (3.847) {518) - (4,385)
Depreciation charge (1,918) {192) (109) (2,217)
Carrying amount at
31 December 2020 5,534 329 49 5912

Interest expense on lease liabllitles in 2020 was AZN 330 (2019: AZN 360). Total cash outflow for leases In
2020 was AZN 2,448 {2019: AZN 2,680).

At the end of each reporting period, the expected residual values are reviewed to reflect actual residual
values achieved on comparable assets and expectations about future prices. As at 31 December 2020,
AZN 6,988 (2019: AZN 9,123) is expected to be payable and is included In calculating the lease liabilities.

Bulldings Vehicles Other Total
Canying amount at

1 January 2019 5,624 651 99 8,374
Additions 2,009 540 74 2,623
Disposals (120) (651) {77) 918
Depreciation charge (2,051) {181) (98) {2,328)

Carrying amount at
31 Decomber 2019 5,392 359 - 5,751
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14 Income Taxes

The corporate income tax expense comprises:

Current tax charge
Deferred income tax cradit for the year

Income tax expense

(544)
309

(145)

2019

(1,439)
29

(1,410)

Standard corporate income tax rate for companies (including banks) comprised 20% for 2020 and 2019.
The effective income tax rate differs from the statutory income tax rates. A reconciliation of the income tax

expense based on statutory rates with actual iz as follows:

2020 2018

Profit before Income tax expense 3,473 7,605
Statutory tax rate 20% 20%
income tax expanse at the statutory rate {695) (1,521)

Tax effect of items which are not deductible or assessable
for taxation purposes:

Impact of non-deductible and other permanent expenses 476 147

Impact of prior year tax expense 74 {36)
Income tax expense (145) (1.410)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as at 31 December and thelr movements for the respective years

comprise:
2018 Recognized In 2019 Recognized In 2020
the statement the statement
of profit or loss and of profit or loss and
other comprehensive other comprehensive
Income Income
Tax effect of temporary
differences
Cash and cash
equivalents 227 (183) 44 45 89
Investment securities
avallable-for-sale . as 38 (20) 18
Amounts due from credit
institutions (291) 241 (50) - (50)
Loans to customers {2,988) 1 (2,987) 306 (2,681)
Property and equipment 322 75 397 32 429
Intangible assets (59) {36) (95) 23 (72)
Other liabillties 519 74 503 (44} 549
Other assets 125 {181) (56) 57 1
Deferred tax llabllity {2,145) 20 (2,116) 309 {(1,7117)
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18 Other Assets and Llabllities

Other assets comprise:

2020 2019
Amounts in the course of settiement 2,971 2,865
Other financlal assets 2,971 2,865
Repossessad collateral 2,869 2,703
Prepayments 1,607 2,892
Tax Recsivables 382 473
Other 6 3
Other non-financlal assets 4,864 6,071
Other assets 7,835 8,036

As at 31 December 2020, prepayments of AZN 1,697 (2019: AZN 2,892) primarily comprise of advance
payments for purchase of property, equipment and insurance.

Other liabilities comprise:

2020 2019
Settlements on plastic cards 1,899 3,469
Lease Llabilities 5,297 5,608
Other 585 174
Other financial llabllities 7,781 9,341
Accrued employse costs 1,718 1,644
Payables to social funds 422 430
Deferred income 332 483
Provisions 136 383
Cther 987 661
Other non-financlal liabilitles 3,505 3,581
Other llabllities 11,376 12,822

Accrued employee costs Include bonuses for employees based on the financial performance of the Bank of
AZN 1,043 (2019: AZN 926) and an accrual for unused vacations of AZN 675 (2019: AZN 718).

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, deferred income represents deferred revenue which was primarily
comprised of fee received for issuance of plastic cards, guarantees and letter of credits.

As at 31 December 2020, AZN 827 (2019: 230) of other non-financial liabllities is other tax liabilities.
Analysis by credit quality of other financial assets outstanding at 31 December 2020 Is as follows:

Settiements on money transfers 2020 2019
Noelther past due nor impaired
Other financial assets

Good 2971 2,865
Total other financlal assets 2,971 2,865
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16 Amounts Dus to Credit Institutions

Amounts due to credH institutions comprise:

2020 2019
Amounts due to Azerballan Morigage Fund 8,380 5,624
Amounts due to the National Fund for Entrepreneurship Support 3,605 4,289
Demand deposlts 7 138
Amounts due to credit Institutions 11,972 10,051

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank had loans financed by the Azerbaljan Mortgage Fund and Natlonal
Fund for Entrepreneurship Support amounting to AZN 8,360 (2019: AZN 5,624) and AZN 3,605 {2019: AZN
4,288) maturing in 2050 (2019: 2043) and 2024 (2019: 2024), with the annual interest rates of 1-4% p.a.
(2019: 1-4% p.a.) and 1% p.a. (2019: 1% p.a.), respectively.

17 Amounts Due to Customers

The amounts due to customers include the following:

2020 2019
Current accounts 216,856 276,430
Time deposits 32,707 54,179
Amounts due to customers 249,563 330,609

As at 31 December 2020, amounts due to customers of AZN 103,987 or 42% (2019: AZN 144,537 or 44%)
of total amounts due to customers were due to ten (2019: ten) largest customers.

The average annual Interest rate on term deposits of individual customers outstanding at
31 December 2020 comprised 2.56% (2019: 2.39%), while the average annual interest rate on term
deposits of legal entities outstanding at 31 December 2020 was 4.32% (2019: 3.50%).

Amounts due to customers include accounts with the following types of customers:

- 2020 2019
Private enterprises 166,049 231,322
Individuals 83,467 99,244
Public organizations 47 43
Amounts due to customers 249,563 330,609
An analysis of customer accounts by economic sector follows:
i 2020 2019
Trade 126,915 142,026
Individuals 83,4687 09,244
Reel estate constructions 23,841 60,783
Insurance and other financlal institutions 3,689 8,914
Transport and communication 7,332 13,524
State and public organizations 4,319 6,118
Amounts due to customers 249,563 330,609

Refer to Note 24 for the disclosure of the fair value of each class of customer accounts. Information on
related party balances is disclosed in Note 25.
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18 Share Capital

As at 31 December 2020 number of ordinary shares are 2,769,035,194 (2019: 2,769,035,1984). All ordinary
shares have a nominal value of 0.02 per share denominated in Azerbaijani Manats and rank equally. Each
share carries one vote.

The share capital of the Bank was contributed by the shareholders in Azerballani Manats and they are
entitled to dividends and any capital distribution in Azerbaljani Manats.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the share capital of the Bank was, as follows:

Number of Total nominal value of

outstanding pald-In and registered

ordinary shares ordinary

- - - Shares

31 December 2019 2,769,035,194 55,381

New shares Issued - -

31 December 2020 2,760,035,194 55,381
19 Commitments and Contingencles

Legal proceedings. In the ordinary course of business, the Bank is subject to legal actions and
complaints. Management believes that the ultimate liability, if any, arising from such actions or complaints
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or the results of future operations of
the Bank.

Tax contingencles. Azerbaijani tax, currency and customs legislation Is subject to varying Interpretations,
and changes, which can occur frequently. Management's interpretation of such legislation as applled to
the transactions and actlvity of the Bank may be challenged by the relevant authorities. Recent events
within Azerbaijan suggest that the tax authorities are taking @ more assertive position In its interpretation of
the legislation and assessments and, as a result, it is possible that transactions and activities that have not
been challenged in the past may be challenged. As such, significant additional taxes, penalties and Interest
may be assessed. Fiscal periods remain open to review by the authorities In respect of taxes for three
calendar years preceding the year of review.

Management believes that as at 31 December 2020 its interpretation of the relevant legislation is
appropriate and that the Bank's tax and social contribution position will be sustained.

Compliance with regulatory ratios. The regulator requires banks to maintain certain prudential ratios
computed based on statutory financial statements. As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019,
the Bank was in compliance with all prudential ratios.

Credit related commitments. The Bank provides guarantees and letters of credit to customers with
primary purpose of ensuring that funds are available to a customer as required. Guarantees and standby
letters of credit represent Irrevocable assurances that the Bank will make payments in the event that a
customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties. Documentary and commercial letters of credit, which
are written undertakings by the Bank on behalf of a customer authorizing a third party to draw drafts on
the Bank up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditlons, are collateralized by the underlying
shipments of goods, to which they relate, or cash deposits and, therefore, carry less risk than a direct
borrowing.
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19 Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

As at 31 December, the Bank’s commitments and contingencies comprised the following:

2020 ' 2019

Undrawn loan commitments 103,725 78,792

Guarantees Issued 10,913 17,628

Letters of credli; 2,124 1,904

Total loan commitments 116,762 98,324
Less — cash held as security against guarantees {3,783) (4,284)

Total credlt related commitments, net of provision and cash covered
exposures 112,079 94,040

Most of the outstanding guarantee letters as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 represent guarantees issued
to cllents for the letters’ performance on delivering goods and services, and tender guarantees issued to
clients as a pledge of their Intent to participate in bidding tender, announced by various institutions.

20 Interest Income and Expense

Interest income and expense comprises:

_In thousands of Azerbaijani Manats 2020 2019
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method
Loans and advances to customers 18,038 19,776
Amounts due from cradit institutions 2,256 3,979
Investment securiies at AC 1,374 2,633
Total Interest Income 21,668 26,388
Interest expense .
Amounts due to customers (1,502) (2,887)
Amounts due to credit Institutions (218) (169)
Total Iinterest expense {1,720) {(3,0586)
Other simllar expense
Lease liabliles (330) (360)
Totzl other similar expense (330) (360)
Total Interest and other similar sxpense (2,050} (3.416)
Net margin on Interest 19,618 22,972
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21 Net Fee and Commilssion Income

Net fee and commission Income comprises:

2020 2019
Plastic card opsrations 3,242 4,030
Settlements operations 3,102 3,872
Cash operations 1,516 1,687
Guarantees and letters of credit 546 737
Agent activities 208 248
Other 94 55
Fee and commission Income 8,708 10,529
Plastic card operations (3.281) (3,711)
Settlements operations {(1,045) (1,287)
Agent activities (81) {219)
Guarantees and letters of credit (7) (13)
Other (301) (342)
Fee and commission expense (4,715) {5,572)
Net fee and commisslion Income 3,991 4,957
22 Personnel, General and Administrative Expenses

2020 2019
Salarles and bonuses (7,505) (8,013)
Social security costs (1,082) (1,.013)
Other employes benefits (735) {(893)
Personnel expenses (8,322) (9,919)
General and administrative expenses comprise:

2020 2019
Depraciation and amortization (4,430) (3,820)
Depreciation charge on right of use assets (2,217) (2,328)
Support expenses (1,870) (1,722)
Legal and consuitancy (1,002) {(840)
Repairs and Malntenance (916) (892)
Security (892) (838)
Communications (863) (646)
Marketing and advertising (442) (467)
Utilities {277) {279)
Operating taxes other than income tax {214) {208)
Donatlons {147) -
Membership (1086) (324)
Insurance (98) (123)
Office supplies (61) (115)
Entertainment (26) (143)
Losses on dispesal of fixed assets and Intangible assets (13) {35)
Fines, penaltles, and forfeits (6) 141
Business fravel {(4) (27)
Other expenses (657) (618)
General and administrative expenses (14,041) {13,484)
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23 Financlal Risk Management

Risk is inherent in the Bank's activities and managed through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monltoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is
critical to the Bank's sustainability and profitability and each individual within the Bank is accountable for
the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibllities. The Bank Is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk,
market risk and operating risks.

The independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the environment,
technology and industry. They are monitored through the Bank’s strategic planning process.

Risk management structure. The Board of Directors Is ultimately responsible for identifying and
controlling risks; however, there are separate independent bodies responsible for managing and monitoring
risks.

Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and
for approving the risk strategies and principles.

Management Board. The Management Board has the responsibllity to monitor the overall risk process
within the Bank.

Risk Committee. The Risk Committee has the overall responsibllity for the development of the risk
strategy and implementing principles, frameworks, policies and limits. It is responsible for the fundamental
risk issues and manages and monitors relevant risk decisions.

Risk Management Unit. The Risk Management Unit Is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk
related procedures to ensure an independent control process.

Risk Controlling Unit. The Risk Controlling Unit is responsible for monitoring compliance with risk
principles, policies and fimits, across the Bank. Each business group has a decentralized unit which is
responsible for the independent control of risks, including monitoring the risk of exposures against limits
and the assessment of risks of new products and structured transactions. This unit also ensures
the complete capture of the risks in rigk measurement and reporting systems.

Bank Treasury. Bank Treasury is responsible for managing the Bank's assets and liabilities and the overall
financial structure. It is also primarily responsible for the funding and liquidity risks of the Bank.

Internal Audit. Risk management processes throughout the Bank are audited annually by the Internal audit
function that examines both the adequacy of the procedures and the Bank's compliance with
the procedures. Internal Audit discusses the results of all assessments with management, and reports its
findings and recommendations to the Audit Committee.

Risk measurement and reporting systems. The Bank's risks are measured using a method which
reflacts both the expected loss likely to arise In normal circumstances and unexpected losses, which are an
estimate of the ultimate actual loss based on statistical models. The models make use of probabiiities
derived from historical experience, adjusted to reflect the economic environment. The Bank also runs worst
case scenarios that would arise in the event that extreme events which are uniikely to occur do, in fact,
oceur,

Monitoring and controlling risks Is primarlly performed based on limits established by the Bank. These limits
reflect the business strategy and market environment of the Bank as well as the level of risk that the Bank
is willing to accept, with additional emphasis on selected industries. In addition the Bank monitors and
measures the overall risk bearing capaclty in relation to the aggregate risk exposure across all risks types
and activities.

Information complled from all the businesses is examined and processed In order to analyze, control and
Identify early risks. On a regular basis detailed reporting of industry and customer risks takes place.

Excessive risk concentration. Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged In
similar business actlvities, or activities In the same geographic region, or have similar economic features
that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes In
economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Bank's
performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risks, the Bank’s policies and procedures include specific
guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are
controlled and managed accordingly.
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23 Financlal Risk Management {Continued)

Credit risk. The Bank exposss itself to credit risk, which s the risk that one party to a financial instrument
will cause a financlal loss for the other party by falling to mest an obligation.

Exposure to credit risk arises as a result of the Bank’s lending and other transactions with counterparties,
giving rise to financial assets and off-balance sheet credit-related commitments.

The Bank's maximum exposure to credit risk is reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets in the
statement of financial position. For financial guarantees Issued, commitments to extend credit, undrawn
credit lines and export/import letters of credit, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the amount of the
commitment.

Credit-related commitments risks. The Bank offers guarantees to its customers which may require that
the Bank makes payments on their behalf. Such payments are collected from customers based on
the terms of the letter of credit. They expose the Bank to risks similar to loans and these are mitigated by
the same contro! processes and policles. The maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of
the statement of financlal position, before the effect of mitigation through the use of master netting and
collateral agreements, s best represented by thelr carrying amounts.

Credit quality per class of financial assets. The credit quality of financial assets Is managed by the Bank
internal credit ratings. The table below shows the credit quality by class of asset for loan-related lines in the
statement of financlal position, based on the Bank's credit rating system.

The Bank manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it Is willing to accept for
individual counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures In
relation to such limits.

The Bank has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible changes
in the creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral. revisions. Counterparty limits are
established by the use of a credit risk classification system, which assigns each counterparty a risk rating at
initiation. The Bank actively uses collateral to reduce its credit risks.

Expected credit loss (ECL) is a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of future cash shortfalls
(Le., the weighted average of credit losses, with the respective risks of default occurring in a given time
period used as weights). An ECL measurement Is unbiased and is determined by adjusting risk of defauit to
the expectations on development of macroeconomic situation in future. ECL measurement Is based on four
components used by the Bank: Probability of Default ("PD"), Exposure at Default (“EAD"), Loss Given
Default ("LGD") and Discount Rate.

Default definition. The Bank defines default as a situation when the exposure meets the following criteria:
¢ The loan was 90+ days overdue at any point within the considered time horizon

Expected credit losses are modelled over instrument's fetime period. The Ifstime period Is equal to the
remaining contractual period to maturity of debt instruments, adjusted for expected prepayments, if any.
For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, it is the contractual period over which an entity
has a present contractual obligation to extend credit. As a matter of exception from determining the lifetime

Management models Lifetime ECL, that is, losses that result from all possible default events over the
remaining lifetime period of the financlal instrument. The 12-monih ECL, represents a portion of lifetime
ECLs that resuit from default events on a financial Instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting period, or remaining lifetime period of the financial instrument if It is less than a year.

The Bank has three approaches for ECL measurement: (i) assessment on an Individual basis; (il)
assessment on a portfolio basis: intemal ratings are estimated on an individual basls but the same credit
risk parameters (e.g. PD, LGD) will be applied during the process of ECL calculations for the same credit
risk ratings and homogeneous segments of the loan portfolio; and (ill) assessment based on external
ratings.
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23 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

The level of ECL that is recognised in these financial statements depends on whether the credit risk of the
borrower has Increased significantly since Initial recognition. This is a three-stage model for ECL
measurement. A financlal instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition and its credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition has a credit loss allowance based on 12-month ECLs
(Stage 1). If a SICR since Initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to Stage 2 but is
not yet deemed to be credit-impaired and the loss allowance Is based on Ifetime ECLs. If & financlal
instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is moved to Stage 3 and loss allowance Is based on
lifetime ECLs. The consequence of an asset being in Stage 3 is that the entity ceases to recognise interest
income based on gross carrying value and applies the asset's effective interest rate to the carrying amount,
net of ECL, when calculating interest Income.

If there is evidence that the SICR criteria are no longer met, the instrument is transferred back to Stage 1. If
an exposure has been transferred to Stage 2 based on a qualitative indicator, the Bank monitors whether
that indicator continues to exist or has changed.

Leaving default status depends on which defaulted triggers exposure experienced during its default.
Number of scenarios can be limited to two:

» if exposure experienced only more than 90 days past due then it's no longer considered as default
when it reaches 30 days delinquency;

» If exposure experlenced also other default triggers then it leaves defauit status when It no longer
meets any of the default criteria for a consecutive period of twelve months:

This logic has been determined based on an analysis that considers the likelihood of a financlal instrument
returning to default status after curing by using different possible definitions of cures

ECL measurement for financial guarantees and loan commitments. The ECL measurement for these
instruments includes the same steps as described above for on-balance sheet exposures and differs with
respect to EAD calculation. The EAD is a product of credit conversion factor ("CCF") and amount of the
commitment (*Ex0ff"). CCF for undrawn credit lines of corporate customers, credit cards issued to
individuals and for financial guarantees Is defined based on statistical analysis of past exposures at default.
CCF for overdrafts is defined as 100% since the limits can be used by the customers at any time.

Internal ratings. For purpose of PD modeliing simplified behavioural scoring models were created and
deveioped to differentiate the risk profile of an individual exposure.

Credit scoring is an instrument widely used by companies for the Internal processes of portfolio risk
measurement and management. Scoring can be defined In general as a statistical technique to predict, at a
specific point In time with the available information, the probability of a future event. More specifically it
allows barks to estimate the probabllity of default of a person requesting credit (then application scoring
model is usually used) or a customer already in the portfolio (behavioural scoring model).

The main assumption for scoring model development is that the past behaviour is a good predictor for the
future, thus models are developed based on historical data. In particular, behavioural models are
leveraging the information regarding past delinquency, historical credit utilization, history of payments or
collection actions. In practice, credit scoring results in the definition of a table listing the characteristics that
provide the mest predictive Information together with the associated attributes and weightings. A total score
is obtalned as the sum of the points for each characteristic.

Credit granting authorization levels are also determined in accordance with the rating of Corporate,
Commercial and SME customers. By using this methodology; it is aimed to establish risk based
optimization of credit processes through assigning the lower rated customer to higher authority levels
whereas assigning higher rated customer to lower authority levels.
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23 Financlal Risk Management (Continued)
The Bank takes following criterlas into consideration for the identification of default:

*» The loan is overdue more than 80 days.

» The borrower Is not able to pay at least one of the loans he received from the Bank (cross default)
« Having a negative intelligence and bad-record for the borrower in the market.

Deterloration of the creditworthiness of the borrower

Ratings, which were created base on score values, gather exposures with similar risk profile. Therefore
PDs are estimated on homogenies risk groups (i.e. per segment and rating).

External ratings. External ratings are assigned to counterparties by Independent international rating
agencies, such as S&P, Moody's and Fitch. These ratings are publicly available. Such ratings and the
corresponding range of PD are applied for the following financial instruments: amounts due from the CBAR,
balances on correspondent accounts including overnight deposits and deposits.

Master scale credit risk grade Comresponding ratings of external Corresponding PD Interval
International rating agencies
= (8&P) =
Excellent AAA to BB+ ¢,01% -0,5%
Good BB to B+ 0,51%-3%
Satisfactory B, B- 3% - 10%
Speclal monitoring CCC+ to CC- 10% -99,9%
Default C, D-l, D-I 100%

* Each master scale credt risk grade is assigned a specific degree of creditworthiness:

» Excellent ~ strong credit quality with low expected credit rigk;

¢ (Good - adequate credit quality with a moderate credit risk;

» Salisfactory ~ moderate credit quallty with a satisfactory credit risk:

»  Special monitoring — facilities that require closer monitoring and remedial management; and
» Default —facilities in which a default has occurred.

External ratings are assigned to counterparties by independent intermational rating agencies, such as S&P, Moody's
and Fitch. These retings are publicly avallable.

Probabliity of default (PD). PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default to occur over a given time period.
For every exposure is estimated Ifetime PD curve which Is dependant from time, credit risk rating and
segment. 12-month PD is calculated as part of lifetime PD curve. The Bank uses different statistical
approaches depending on the segment and product type to calculated Iifetime PDs, such as Bayeslan
Scalar approach, Welbull and Adjusted Weibull distribution.

Two types of PDs are used for calculating ECLs: 12-month and Ifetime PD. An assessment of a 12-month
PD is based on the latest available historic default data and adjusted for supportable forward-looking
information when appropriate. Lifetime PDs represent the estimated probability of a default occurring over
the remalning Iife of the financial instrument and it Is & sum of the 12 months PDs over the life of the
instrument. The Bank uses different statistical approaches depending on the segment and product type to
calculated lifetime PDs, such as the extrapolation of 12-month PDs based on migration matrixes,
developing lifetime PD curves based on the historical default data, hazard rate approach or other.

Macro-economic factors. Internal bank forecasts provide the best estimate of the expected macro-
economic development over the next 3 years. After 3 years, no macro-economic impact Is used. The
impact of the relevant economic variables on the PD has been determined by performing statistical
regression analysis to understand the impact that the changes In these variables historically had on the
default rates.

As with any economic forecast, the projections are subject to a high degree of Inherent uncertainty, and
therefore the actual outcomes may be significantly different to those projected. The Bank considers these
forecasts to represent its best estimate of the possible outcomes.
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23 Financlal Risk Management {Continued)

Loss glven default (LGD). LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. it is based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to recsive. It is usually
expressed as a percentage of the gross book value. The expected losses are discounted to present value
at the end of the reporting period.

LGD varies by the type of counterparty and product type. The LGDs are determined based on the factors
that impact the expected recoveries after a default event. The calculation of LGD is based on recovery
statistics.

LGD represents the Bank's expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by the
type of counterparty, type and seniority of the claim, and the avallability of collateral or other credit support.

The 12-month and Iifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors that impact the expected recoveries
after a default event. The approach to LGD measurement can be divided into three possible approaches:

¢ measurement of LGD based on the speclfic characteristics of the collateral;
* calculation of LGD on a portfolio basis based on recovery statistics; or
¢ Individually defined LGD depending on different factors and scenarios,

The Bank calculates LGD based on specific characteristics of the collateral, such as projected coliateral
values, historical discounts on sales and other factors for ioans secured by real estate, cash and liquid
securities. LGD is calculated on a collective basis based on the latest available recovery statistics for the
remainder of the corporate loan portfolio and for retall secured and unsecured products.

Exposure at default (EAD). EAD Is an estimate of exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting period, including repayments of principal and interest,
and expected drawdowns on committed facilities.

For revolving products EAD is estimated using Credit Conversion Factor ("CCF"). CCF is a coefficient that
shows the probability of conversion of the off-balance amounts to an on-balance sheet exposure within
defined period. CCF for financlal guarantees is defined based on globally accepted Basel 3 standard.

The EADs are determined based on the expected payment profile that varies by product type. EAD is
based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower over a 12-month or lifetime basis for amortising
products and bullet repayment loans. This will also be adjusted for any expected overpayments made by a
borrower. Early repayment or refinancing assumptions are also incorporated into the calculation. For
revolving products, the EAD is predicied by taking the current drawn balance and adding a "credit
conversion factor” that accounts for the expected drawdown of the remaining limit by the time of default.
These assumptions vary by product type, current limit utilisation and other borrower-specific behavioural
characteristics.

Staging

The level of ECL that is recognised in these financial statements depends on which stage was assigned to
exposure from a three stage model. A financial Instrument that is not credit-impaired on Initial recognition
and its credit risk has not deterlorated significantly since Initial recognition has a credit loss allowance
based on 12-month ECLs (Stage 1). If a stage 2 since Initial recognition Is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to Stage 2 but Is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired and the loss allowance is based
on lifetime ECLs. If a financlal instrument Ig credit-impaired, the financial instrument is moved to Stage 3
and loss allowance Iis based on Ifetime ECLs. The consequence of an asset being In Stage 3 is that the
entity ceases to recognise interest income based on gross carrying value and applies the asset's nominal
interest rate to the carrying amount, net of ECL, when calculating interest income.

 Significant deterioration in credit risk (Stage 2)

The assessment whether or not there has been a significant deterioration in credit risk (stage 2) since initial
recognition is performed on whole portfolio. The criteria used to identify stage 2 are monltored and
reviewed periodically for appropriateness by the Bank’s Risk Management Department. The presumption,
being that there have been signlificant deterioration In credit risk since Initial recognition when financial
assets are more than 30 days past due, has not been rebutted.
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23 Financial Risk Management {Continued)

The Bank considers a financial instrument to have experlenced a stage 2 when one or more of the
following quantitative, qualitative or backstop criteria have been met:

e 31-80 days overdue

» Restructured overdue loans

o Clients with specific monitoring status

e Any other relevant management information on financial situation deterioration on the customer.

If there is evidence that the stage 2 criteria are no longer met, the instrument is transferred back to Stage 1
after quarantine, which is defined as 6 months.

If an exposure has been transferred to Stage 2 based on a qualitative indicator, the Bank monitors whether
that indicator continues to apply or it Is no longer valid.

Forward-looking Information Incorporated In the ECL models. The assessment of SICR and the
calculation of ECLs both Incorporate supportable forward-looking information. The Bank Identified certain
key economic variables that cormrelate with developments in credit risk and ECLs. Forecasts of economic
variables (the "base economic scenaric") are provided by the Bank's and provide the best estimate of the
expected macro-economic development over the next three years. The impact of the relevant economic
variables on the PD, EAD and LGD has been determined by performing statistical regression analysis to
understand the impact that the changes in these variables historically had on the default rates and on the
components of LGD and EAD.

In addition to the base economic scenarlo, the Bank's Risk Department also provides other possible
scenarios along with scenario weightings. The number of other scenarios used is set based on the analysis
of each major product type to ensure that non-linearities are captured. The number of scenarios and their
attributes are reassessed at each reporting date. The scenario weightings are determined by a combination
of statistical analysis and expert credit judgement, taking into account the range of possible outcomes of
which each chosen scenario is representative. The assessment of SICR Is performed using the Lifetime PD
under each of the bases and the other scenarios, multiplied by the assoclated scenario weighting, along
with qualitative and backstop indicators. This determines whether the whole financial instrument Is in Stage
1, Stage 2, or Stage 3 and hence whether a 12-month or lifetime ECL should be recorded. Following this
assesesment, the Bank measures ECL as either a probability-weighted 12 month ECL (Stage 1), or a
probability weighted lifetime ECL (Stages 2 and 3). These probability-weighted ECLe are determined by
running each scenario through the relevant ECL model and multiplying it by the appropriate scenario
weighting (as opposed to weighting the inputs).

As with any economic forecast, the projections and likelihoods of occurrence are subject to a high degree
of inherent uncertainty, and therefore the actual outcomes may be significantly different to those projected.
The Bank considers these forecasts to represent its best estimate of the possible outcomes and has
analysed the non-linearities and asymmetries within the Bank's different portfolios to establish that the
chosen scenarios are appropriately representative of the range of possible scenarios.

The Bank regularly reviews Its methodology and assumptions to reduce any difference between the
estimates and the actual loss of credit. Such backtesting Is performed at least once a year.

The results of backtesting the ECL. measurement methodology are communicated to Bank Management
and further steps for tuning models and assumptions are deflned after discussions between authorised
persons.
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23 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

The geographical concentration of the Bank's monetary assets and liabilities is set out below:

2020 2019
Azerbaljan OECD CiS and Total Azerbaljan OECD CiSand Total
other other
foreign foreign
countries countrles
Assets
Cash and cash
eguivalents 87,235 93,612 2,683 183,540 114,592 87,731 73 202,396
Amounts due from credit
Institutions 1,750 6,131 3,578 11,480 8,551 6,156 6,279 20,986
Loans to customers 125,683 - - 125,683 160,678 - - 160,878
Notes issued by CBAR
and other bonds 23,096 - - 23,096 36,636 - - 36,536
Other financial assets 2,971 - - 2971 2,865 - - 2,865
Total assets 240,735 09,743 6,272 348,750 323,222 93,887 6,352 423461
Llabllities
Amounts dus to credit
Institutions 11,972 - - 11,972 10,061 - - 10,051
Amounts due to
customers 249,563 - - 240,583 330,608 - - 330,600
Other financlal liabilities 7.781 - - 7,781 9,341 - - 9,341
Total liabllitles 269,316 - - 268,316 350,001 - - 350,001

Net assets/{liabilities) (28,581) 99,743 8,272 77,434 {26,779) 93,887 8,352 73,460

Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Bank will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due
under normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has developed a sophisticated
system for comprehensive assessment of expected cash flows. The methodology of the liquidity
management tools and reports Is approved by the Supervisory Board of the Bank, prepared by the Assets
and Liabilities Management department and reviewed on the monthly basis by Asset Liabilities Committes.

The Bank maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can be easlly liquidated in
the event of an unforeseen Interruption of cash flow. Additionally, the Bank malntains obligatory reserve
with the CBAR and utilizes a highly effective cash management system across all its branches, ATMs and
balances of the correspondent accounts.

The liquidity position is assessed and managed by the Bank primarily on a standalone basis, based on
minimum liquidity ratio of 30% established by the CBAR. As at 31 December, these ratios were as follows:

= 2020 2019
Instant Liquidity Ratic 63.33% 48.25%

The Bank closely monitors potential effects of the pandemic and lower oll price on the liquidity situation in
an alert phase. The deposit rates are adjusted timely with respect to the changes in Interest rates and
overall Banking sector liquidity situation. Client transactions are carried out by considering possible liquidity
effects, including the crediting process.

The Bank has not experlenced a critical liquidity situation in 2020 due to actions taken by alert liquidity
phase and expects that liquidity condition will improve further in 2021, thanks to the expected normalization
of the economic and financial conditions in the country.
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23 Financlal Risk Management (Continued)

Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities. The tables below summarize the maturity
profile of the Bank's financial liabilities at 31 December based on contractual undiscounted repayment
obligations. Repayments which are subjected to notice are treated as if notice were to be given
immediately. However, the Bank expects that many customers will not request repayment on the eariiest
date the Bank could be required to pay and the table does not reflect the expected cash flows indicated by
the Bank’s deposit retention history.

Less than 3 to 12 months 1toSyears Over 5 years Total
As at 31 December 2020 3 months
Financlal llabilities
Amounts duse to credit
institutions 455 1,295 6,479 13,673 21,802
Amounts due to customers 224,204 7.560 19,207 37 251,008
Other financlal llabllities 2,634 1,435 2,414 1,208 7,781
Total undiscounted .
financial llabllitles 227,383 10,280 28,100 15,008 280,781
Less then 3 to 12 months 1to5years  Over 5 years Total
As at 31 December 2019 3 months
Financial liabllides
Amounts due to credit
institutions 1,565 925 4,116 6,332 12,937
Amounts due to customers 295,234 17,756 9,060 10,948 332,008
Other financlal liabilities 3,777 1,265 2,934 1,375 9,341
Total undiscounted
financlal Nabliities 300,576 19,936 16,109 18,655 355,276

The table below shows the contractual expiry by maturity of the Bank’s financial commitments and
contingencies. Each undrawn loan commitment Is included in the time band contalning the earliest date it
can be drawn down. For issued financial guarantee contracts, the maximum amount of the guarantes is
allocated to the earliest period in which the guarantee could be called.

Less than 3 to 12 months 1toSyears Over5years Total
3 months
2020 4,851 8,090 68,501 35,320 116,762
2019 11,485 12,633 38,817 35,380 98,324

The Bank expects that not all of the contingent liabilities or commitments will be drawn before expiry of
the commitments.

The Bank’s capability to repay its liabilities relies on its ability to realize an equivalent amount of assets
within the same period of time.

The Bank does not receive any significant funds from any one organization or private Individual.
included in due to customers are term deposits of individuals. In accordance with the Azerbaijan legisiation,
the Bank is obliged to repay such deposits upon demand of a depositor. Refer to Note 17 .
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23 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Less than 3 to 12 months 1toSyears Over 5 years Total
As at 31 December 2019 3 months
Financlal llabllides
Amounts due to credit
Institutions 1,565 925 4,115 6,332 12,937
Amounts due fo custormners 295,234 17,756 9,060 10,948 332,098
Other financial llabllities 3,777 1,255 2,934 1,375 9,341
Total undiscounted
financial liabliitles 300,576 19,836 16,109 18,855 355,276

The Bank does not use the above maturity analysis based on undiscounted contractual maturities of
llabliities to manage liquidity. Instead, the Bank monitors expected maturities and the resulting expected
liquidity gap as follows:

Less than 3to12 1to5 Over5yeamns Total
3 months  months years
At 31 Decernber 2020
Financlal assets 268,480 42,758 22,740 12,772 348,750
Financial liabllities 227,469 0,487 22,928 9,432 269,316
Net liquidity gap based on expected
maturities 41,011 33,271 (188) 3,340 77,434
At 31 December 2019
Flnancial assets 310,825 69,037 37,084 6,515 423 461
Financlal liabilities 300,578 19,307 13,897 16,219 350,001
Net illquidity gap based on expected
maturities 10,247 48,730 23,187 {8,704) 73,4680

Market risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market variables such as interest rates and forelgn exchanges. The Bank does not have any
significant equity, corporate fixed income or derivatives holdings.

Interest rate risk Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future
cash flows or the fair values of financial Instruments. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Bank did not
have any instruments with floating Interest rates.

Currency risk is defined as the rigk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Bank Is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency
exchange rates on its financlal position and cash flows.
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23 Financlal Risk Management (Continued)

The table below summarises the Bank's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the
reporting period:

At 31 December 2020 At 31 December 2019

Monetary Monetary Net Monetary Monetary
financlal financlal sition financial financlal Net position

 assets llabliities P° assets llabliities
QZ‘;’;@“‘"' 191,261 (126,248) 65,013 223,355 (172,634) 50,721
US Dollars 110,662 (112,507)  (1,845) 162,700 (161,527) 1,173
Euros 22,805 (28.230)  (5,425) 10,334 (14,181) (3,847)
Other 22,022 (2,331) 19,691 27,072 (1,858) 25,413
Total 346,750 (269,318) 77,434 423,461 {350,001) 73,460

The tables below indicate the currencies to which the Bank had significant exposure at 31 December on its
non-trading monetary assets and liabilitles and Its forecast cash flows. The analysis calculates the effect of
a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against AZN, with all other variables held constant on
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income (due to the fair value of currency sensitive
non-trading monetary assets and liabilities). The effect on equity does not differ from the effect on
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income. A negative amount in the table reflects a
potential net reduction in statement of profit or loss or equity and other comprehensive income, while a
positive amount reflects a net potentlal increase.

Increase In Effect on profit Increass In Effect on profit

currency rate in % before tax currency rate In % before tax

Currency 2020 2020 2019 2019
usD 10.00 170 10.00 869
EUR 10.00 (38) 10.00 {44)
Decraase In Effect on profit Decrease In Effect on profit

currency rate n % before tax currency rate In % before tax

Currency 2020 2020 2019 2019
USD {10.00) (170) (10.00) (869)
EUR {10.00) a8 (10.00) 44

Operatlonal risk. Operational risk Is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or
external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have
legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financlal loss. The Bank cannot expect to eliminate all opsrational
risks, but a control framework and monitoring and responding to potential risks could be effective tools to
manage the risks. Controls should include effective segregation of duties, access, authorization and
reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit.
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24  Falr Values of Financlal Instruments

Fair value measurement using

Date of Quoted  Significant  Significant Total
valuation prices observable unobservable
in active Inputs Inputs
markets {Level 2) (Level 3)
(Level 1)
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents 31 Dacember 2020 183,540 - - 183,540
Amounts due from credit
institutions 31 December 2020 - 11,460 - 11,480
Loans to customers 31 December 2020 - 125,683 125,683
Notes issued by CBAR and other
bonds 31 December 2020 23,038 - 60 23,096
Other financlal assets 31 December 2020 - - 2971 2971
Liabllities for which fair values
are disclosed
Amounts due to credit institutions 31 December 2020 - - 11,972 11,972
Amounts due to customers 31 December 2020 - - 249,663 249,563
Other financial liabllities 31 December 2020 - - 7,781 7,781
Fair value measurement using
Date of Quoted  Significant  Significant Total
valuation prices  observable unobservable
In active Inputs Inputs
markets {Level 2) (Level 3)
- (Leval 1)
Assots for which fair values are
disclosed
Cash and cash aquivalents 31 December 2019 - - 202,396 202,396
Amounts due from credit
institutions 31 December 2019 - 20,986 20,986
Loans to customers 31 December 2019 - - 160,678 160,678
Notes issued by CBAR and other
bonds 31 December 2019 36,476 60 36,536
Other financial assets 31 December 2019 - - 2,885 2,865
Liabllities for which falr values
are disclosed
Amounts due fo credit institutions 31 Dacember 2019 - - 10,051 10,051
Amounts due to customers 31 December 2019 - - 330,809 330,609
Other financlal liabillles 31 December 2019 - - 9,341 9,341

Fair value of financial assets and liabllitiss not carried at fair
of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Bank'’

value. Set out below is a comparison by class
s financial instruments that are not carried at fair value

in the statement of financlal position. The table does not include the fair values of non-financlal assets and

non-financial liabilities.
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24 Fair Values of Financlal Instruments (Continued)

Carrying value Fair value Unrecognized
2020 oain/(loss)
Financlal assets
Cash and cash equivalents 183,540 183,540 -
Amounts due from credit Institutions 11,480 11,480 -
Loans to custocmers 125,683 120,553 -
Other financlal assets 2,971 2,971 -
Financilal llabilitles
Amounts due to credit Institutions 11,972 11,972 -
Amounts due to customers 249,563 247,255 -
Other financial llabiliies 7,781 7,781 -
Carrying value Falr value Unrecognized
2019 gain/{ioss)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 202,396 202,396 -
Amounts due from credit institutions 20,986 20,986 -
Loans to customers 204,171 204,171 -
Other financial assets 2,865 2,865 -
Financlal liabllitdes
Amounts due to credit institutions 10,051 10,051 -
Amounts due to customers 330,609 330,609 -
Other financial liabllities 9,341 9,341 -

Assels for which fair value approximates carrying valus. For financial assets and financial liabilities that are
liquid or having a short-term maturity (less than three months) It is assumed that the carrying amounts
approximate to their fair value. This assumption is also applied to demand deposits and savings accounts
without a specific maturity.

Financial assets and financial llabilities carried at amortized cost. Fair value of the quoted notes is based
on price quotations at the reporting date. The fair value of unquoted Instruments, loans to customers,
customer deposits, amounts due from credit institutions and amounts due to credit institutions and other
financial assets and liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently avallable
for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

In accordance with IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, parties are considered to be related if one party has
the abllity to control the other party or exerclse significant influence over the other party in making financial
or operational decisions. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to
the substance of the relationship, not merely the legal form.

Related parties may enter into transactions which unrelated parties might not, and transactions between
related parties may not be effected on the same terms, conditions and amounts as transactions befween
unrelated parties.

YKB and KFS directly and indirectly control and have significant influence over a significant number of
entities. The Bank enters into banking transactions with these entities including but not limited to lending,
deposit taking, cash.
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25 Related Party Disclosures

The outstanding balances of related party transactions are as follows:

2020 2019

Parent Entitles under Parent Entities under

common common

control control

Loans outstanding at 1 January, gross - - - 1,466
Loans issued during the year - - - -~
Loan repayments during the year - - - (1,484)
Other movements - - - 2
Loans outstanding at 31 December, gross - - - -
Less: allowance for Impairment at 31 December - - - -
Loans outstanding at 31 Decamber, net - - - -
Deposits outstanding at 1 January, gross 1,360 - 1,677 5,943
Deposlts placed during the year 1,138 - 1,620 -
Deposit repayments during the year (2,498) - (3.297) (5,780)
Other movements 2,289 3 1,204 (183)
Translation gainfloss (1) - 66 -
Deposits outstanding at 31 December, gross 2,288 3 1,360 -
Less: allowance for Impairment at 31 December (37) - {18) -
Deposits outstanding at 31 December, net 2,251 3 1,342 -
Current accounts at 31 December 2,288 3 1,360 186

Total current accounts with the parent as at 31 December2020 is AZN 2,288 (2019: AZN 1,360). During the
year AZN 1,138 (2019: AZN 1,820) of deposit placed with parent carrying 0.25% interest rate (2019:
0.37%) and no deposit was placed (2019: nil) with entities under comman control (2019: nil%).

The income and expense arising from related parly transactions are as follows:

2020 2019
Parent Entitles under Parent Entities under
common common
control control
Interest income - - 10 162
Interest expense - (39) - {31)
Fee and commissfon income - 22 - 23
Fee and commission expense {98) {1) (109) (14)
General and administrative expenses {(213) {477) (225) (373)

Compensation of key management personnel of 4 members (2019: 5 members) comprised the following:

2020 2018
Salarles and short term benefits 1,195 1,413
Other accrued employee costs 76 110
1,271 1,523

Total key management personnel compensation
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26  Capltal Adequacy

The objectives of management when managing the Bank’s capital are (i) to comply with the capital
requirements set by Regulatory, (ii) to safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concem and {i])]
to maintain strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios In order to support its business and to maximize
shareholders' value. Compliance with capital adequacy ratios set by the Regulatory is monitored monthly
with reports outlining their calculation reviewed and signed by the Bank’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Accountant. The other objectives of capital management are evaluated annually.

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes In economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Bank may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders or return capital to sharsholders. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years.

The Regulatory requires each bank or banking group to: (a) hold the minimum level of total capital of AZN
50,000 (2018: AZN 50,000); (b) maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital to the risk-weighted assets
(the “total capital ratio”) at or above the prescribed minimum of 10% (2019: 10%) and (c) maintain a ratio of
tier 1 capital to the risk-weighted assets (the “Tier 1 capital ratio”) at or above the prescribed minimum of
6% (2019: 5%).

Management believes that the Bank was in compliance with the statutory capital adequacy ratio throughout
2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank's capital adequacy ratio based on the Regulatory requirements was as
foliows:

- __ 2020 2019
Tler 1 capital 78,969 74,992
Tler 2 capltal 2,955 6,269
Less: deductions from capital {8,152) (8,475)
Total regulatory capital 73,772 72,786
Risk-weighted assets 167,521 220,850
Tler 1 capltal adequacy ratio 42,31% 30.15%
Total capital adequacy ratio 44.04% 32.96%

27  Events after the End of the Reporting Period

COVID-19 developments. The strict special quarantine regime measures introduced by the Azerbaljani
Government to combat the COVID-18 outbreak, such as travel restrictions, quarantines, closure of
business and other venues, lockdowns of certain areas throughout the country ceased in January 2021.
Based on the order of Cabinet of Ministers on “Vaccination Strategy covering 2021-2022 years” dated 16
January 2021, gradual vaceination of Azerbaljan population has started.

Capital adequacy ratios were maintained at a level higher than regulatory minimums as of the date of
issuance of these financial statements. Sensitlvity analysis show that existing capital buffers give a
confidence to absorb the risks that could appear from further evolution of COVID results.

Legislative changes. According to the newly introduced article 21.27 to law on deposit
insurance starting from 2021 the funds of sole enirepreneurs in the amount of up to AZN 20 000 held at
banks are also to be Insured by banks, increasing thereby the basis for quarterly fee payable by banks to
Azerbaljan Deposit Insurance Fund {(ADIF) for deposit insurance. Also, starting from 2021, according to the
enclosed letter from ADIF the quarterly fee is raised by 0.05% of the voiume of insured deposits per quarter
{or 0.2% annually).




